
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session, 
 & Regular Meeting of Newport City Council (CC) 

Including Acting in the Capacity as the 
Local Contract Review Board (LCRB) 

And Urban Renewal Agency (URA) 
 

The City Council of the City of Newport, also acting in the capacity as the LCRB and URA, 
will hold a work session on Tuesday, February 22, 2011, at 12:00 Noon, with a regular 
Council meeting beginning at 6:00 P.M. on Tuesday, February 22, 2011. The work session 
will be held in Conference Room A at City Hall, and the regular meeting will be held in the 
Council Chamber, City Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A 
copy of the agenda follows. 
 
The work session and meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for 
an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with 
disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City 
Recorder (541)574-0613. 
 
The City Council, also acting in the capacity as the LCRB and URA, reserves the right to add 
or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other business 
deemed necessary at the time of the work session and/or meeting. Action items that do not 
require a public hearing may be moved up earlier in the meeting. 
 
Members of the media, not having attended a City of Newport executive session, may be asked 
to present credentials prior to attendance at an executive session. 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 -- 12:00 Noon 

CC – LCRB - URA 
Conference Room A 

 
I. Budget Committee Interviews 
 (Council) 
II. Short report from Lakewood Hills Neighborhood Meeting 
 (Councilor Sawyer & City Manager Voetberg) 
III. Review of Topics for future work sessions – prioritize for April & May 
 (Mayor) 
 
 



IV. Establish Process for Business License/Room Tax Task Force/set date for first 
 Meeting 
 (Mayor)  
V. Establish work groups for issues needing to be moved forward, timelines 
 (Mayor) 
VI. Finish review of Council Rules 
 (Mayor/Council) 
VII. Finish background review of Pension Plan, Health Insurance Benefits, and Reserve 
 Policy 
 (City Manager/Finance Director 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 -- 6:00 P.M. 

CC - LCRB – URA 
Council Chamber 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the 
City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City Council Chamber. Anyone 
commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the Public Comment section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by 
the City Council. 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. Call to Order and Roll Call  
 
III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 
 
IV. Public Comments 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s 
 attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be  
 limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a maximum of 15 minutes for all  
 items.. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 
V. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar is an area of the meeting agenda where items of a repeating or routine 
nature can be considered under a single action. Any person who desires to have an item on the 
consent agenda removed and considered separately could make it so by merely asking. 
 
A. Approval of minutes from the work session, regular meeting 
 and executive session of February 7, 2011 
 (Hawker) 

  
 B. Fire & Police Month Reports – January 2011 
  (Cole & Miranda) 
 
 C. Report of Accts. Paid – January 2011 
  (Marshall) 



 
VI. Officers’ Reports  

A. Mayor’s Report 
 1. Appointment of Budget Committee Member 
 2. Request received from Town & Country Fair & Rodeo Association 
  For Sponsorship for County Geo-Coin 
B. City Manager’s Report 

 C. City Attorney’s Report 
   
VII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
 Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential 

future action items 
 
 A. Presentation by PAADA – Teen Court 
 
 B. Presentation by Guy Faust on Community Development Block Grant 
 
 C. Discuss attorney position – interim 
  
 D. Discuss Amendment to Newport Municipal Code Chapter 7.05 --Solid Waste  
 
VIII. Action Items  

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak.  (Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances)  

 
 A. Rocky Creek Water Supply Development 
  (Voetberg/Ritzman) 
  
 Note: Must convene as the Local Contract Review Board to consider this item 
 B. Revisions of  Local Contracting Rules. 
  (McCarthy/Ritzman) 
 
 Return to Regular Council Meeting 
 C. Consideration of a Request for a Special Event Fee Waiver/Loyalty Days 
  (Hawker) 
 
 D. Deco Park Construction direction for Phase One at Hwy. 101 & Hurbert St. 
  (Protiva/Ritzman) 
 
 E. Appointment of an advisory committee for the City Center Commercial Parking  
  District 
  (Tokos) 
 
 F. Notice of Intent to Award the Visitor Wayfinding Signs, Phase II 
  (Ritzman) 
 
IX. Councilor’s Reports and Comments 



X. Public Comment 
(Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 

 
XI. Adjournment 
 

NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
Follows Regular Council Meeting 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
II. Public Comments 
 This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Agency’s 
 attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda.  Comments will be  
 limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a maximum of 15 minutes for all  
 items.  Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 
III. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar is an area of the meeting agenda where items of a repeating or 
routine nature can be considered under a single action.  Any person who desires to have 
an item on the consent agenda removed and considered separately could make it so by 
merely asking. 
 
A. Approval of minutes from regular URA meeting of January 18, 2011 
 (Hawker) 
 

IV. Discussion Items and Presentations 
 Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential 

future action items 
 
 A. Power Point Presentation on Urban Renewal 101 
  (Tokos/Ritzman) 
 
V. Adjournment 
 
 























COUNCIL RULES: 

REVISED COUNCIL RULES, INCLUDING BOTH REDLINE AND 
CLEAN VERSIONS 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Newport 
 
 

COUNCIL RULES 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE JUNE 1, 2009 
 
         Revision draft:  02-14-11 



 i

 
 

INDEX 
 
 

RULES GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETINGS 1 
 
     TYPES OF MEETINGS: 1 
 
Regular Meetings .......................................................................................................................... 1 
Special Meetings ........................................................................................................................... 1 
Emergency Meetings .................................................................................................................... 2 
Business Sessions and Work Sessions ........................................................................................ 2 
Executive Sessions ....................................................................................................................... 2 
  
     MEETING PROCEDURE: 3 
 
Requirements of all Meetings……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..3 
Adjournment, Continuance, and Breaks ....................................................................................... 3 
Agenda .......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Broadcasting Council Meetings .................................................................................................... 4 
Cell Phones and Pagers ............................................................................................................... 4 
Consent AgendaCalendar ............................................................................................................. 4 
Decorum ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
Exhibits ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
Meeting Procedure ........................................................................................................................ 5 
Meeting Staffing ............................................................................................................................ 5 
Minutes ......................................................................................................................................... 5 
Motions ......................................................................................................................................... 5 
News Media .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Order ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
Order of Business ......................................................................................................................... 7 
Ordinances and Resolutions ......................................................................................................... 8 
Planning Commission Testimony .................................................................................................. 9 
Presiding Officer ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Public Comment at Council Meetings ........................................................................................... 9 
Public Hearings and Participation ................................................................................................. 9 
 Land Use Public Hearings ............................................................................................... 10 
  ............................................................................................................ Legislative Hearings 10 
  ...................................................................................................... Quasi-Judicial Hearings 10 
Public Members Addressing the Council .................................................................................... 11 
Quorum ....................................................................................................................................... 12 
Reconsideration of Actions Taken .............................................................................................. 12 
Suspension of Rules ................................................................................................................... 12 
Voting .............................................................................................................................. 13 
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Tab stops:  72 pt, Left

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  72 pt



 ii

MISCELLANEOUS GENERAL COUNCIL RULES 14 
 
Annual Report of Boards, Commissions and Committees .......................................................... 14 
Appointed Positions .................................................................................................................... 14 
Attendance and Presence in the City .......................................................................................... 14 
Communication with Staff ........................................................................................................... 14 
Conduct of Council Members ...................................................................................................... 15 
Conferences and Seminars ........................................................................................................ 17 
Confidentiality  ............................................................................................................................ 17 
Contacts with Organizations ....................................................................................................... 17 
Expenses, Reimbursement and Compensation .......................................................................... 18 
Gifts by the Council ..................................................................................................................... 18 
Legal Advice ............................................................................................................................... 18 
Liaison to Boards, Commissions and Committees ...................................................................... 18 
Litigation ...................................................................................................................................... 19 
Public Records ............................................................................................................................ 19 
Representing the City ................................................................................................................. 19 
Vacancies on Boards, Commissions and Committees ............................................................... 19 
Vacancies on the Council ........................................................................................................... 20 



 1

These rules are authorized by the Ccity Ccharter. The Council shall review these rules 
periodically. Amendments shall be adopted by a majority of the entire Council. The 
Council Rrules are not intended to replace or supersede any applicable federal or state 
laws or regulations, city ordinances or policies, or provisions of the Ccity Ccharter. 
 
If an interpretation of Council Rules is necessary, the interpretation will be provided by 
the City Council in consultation with city staff. 
 
 
RULES GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
TYPES OF MEETINGS 
 
The Council may hold regular, special or emergency meetings. A regular meeting is one 
held on the Council’s normal meeting schedule. A special meeting is one held at a time 
other than a regularly scheduled meeting time, but with at least 24 hours notice. An 
emergency meeting is one held on less than 24 hours notice.  
 
The Council has chosen to characterize some of its meetings as business sessions and 
some of its meetings as work sessions. The anticipation is that most formal actions 
(ordinances, resolutions, orders and motions) will occur at business sessions. All 
Council meetings and sessions, including work sessions, shall be held in compliance 
with Oregon public meeting law. 
 
All Council meetings shall be open to the public, except executive sessions authorized 
by state public meeting law. The Council may, by motion, go into executive session at 
any regular, special or emergency meeting. 
 
Regular Meetings  
 
 
The Council will meet regularly on the first and third Mondays of each month in the 
Council Chambers. If a regularly scheduled Council meeting time is on a city holiday, the 
meeting will be held on the first day that is not a city holiday. The meetings will start at 
6:00 P.M. In addition, the Council will hold a pre-meeting work session at noon on the 
day of each regular Council sessionmeeting. The Council may from time to time hold 
additional work sessions to address major matters. at 5:00 P.M. on the day of a Council 
meeting.  Nothing in this section prevents the City Council or City Manager from calling a 
special or emergency session to be held at any time, consistent with state law. 
 
Special Meetings 
   
A.Special meetings are called by: 
 

• The Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the President of the Council, at their 
discretion 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Microsoft Sans
Serif

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: (Default) Microsoft Sans
Serif, 12 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  18 pt + Indent at:  36 pt



 2

• , may, or at Tthe Council at the request of two or more members of the Council, 
or shall, call a special meeting  

• of the Council. TThe City Manager may also call a special meeting of the Council.   
 
BA. Written notice of a special meeting shall be directed to each member of the 

Council at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. The notice shall be served on 
each member personally, telephonically, or or electronically, or if the Council 
Mmember is not found, left at his or her place of residence or business. All notice 
requirements of state law shall be satisfied before any special meeting can be 
conducted. 

 
B. Special meetings of the Council may also be held at any time by common consent of 
all members of the Council subject to notice requirements being met. Council Members 
shall keep the City Manager informed of their current telephone numbers. 
 
C. Because of the possibility of special and emergency meetings, Council Members 
should normally advise the City Manager if they will be absent from the city for more 
than 24 hours. Advising the City Manager of absences is particularly important if the 
Council member will be in a location or involved in an activity that limits electronic 
communication. 
 
Emergency Meetings 
   
In the case of an emergency, aAn emergency meeting may be called by the City 
Manager, the Mayor, or two Councilors, consistent with state law. The minutes of the 
emergency meeting shall describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours notice. 
The city shall attempt to contact the media and other interested persons to inform them 
of the meeting. 
 
Regular MeetingsBusiness Sessions and Work Sessions 
 
Business sessions include any Rregular meetings are regular,, special, or emergency 
sessions at which the Council is expected to take formal action. Work sessions are any 
regular, special or emergency sessions meetings used to present information to Council, 
to allow the Council to prepare for regularbusiness sessions or to allow preliminary 
discussion on upcoming Council items. The Council may take formal action at a work 
session, but formal action items will not normally be scheduled for work sessions. 
 
Executive Sessions  
  
An executive session (meeting closed to the public) may be held in accordance with 
state law. Care will be taken to ensure that proper and timely notice is made in 
accordance with statutory requirements. Executive sessions may be held during regular, 
special or emergency meetings, so long as appropriate statutory requirements are met. 
 
A. No formal actions can be taken during an executive session. When the Council 

reconvenes in open session, formal action may be taken. Only the Council, City 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0 pt, First
line:  0 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0 pt, First
line:  0 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Justified



 3

Manager, City Recorder, City Attorney, news media representatives and others 
invited by the Council or City Manager may attend an executive session.  

 
B. A major reason for allowing members of the news media to attend executive 

sessions is to ensure that the issues discussed are proper subjects and actions 
under the state laws related to executive sessions and to keep the media informed 
concerning the background of deliberations so they have a better understanding of 
any decisions made as a result of the meeting. Members of the press shall be told 
that they may not report the substance of an executive session. 

 
C. Minutes or a recording of executive sessions are required.   
 
D. Information discussed during an executive session and other privileged 

communications should not be disclosed to persons other than Council Members, 
the City Manager, City Recorder or City Attorney outside the executive session. 

 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE 
 
Requirements of all Meetings 
 
All notice requirements of state law shall be satisfied before any specialCouncil meeting 
can be conducted. 
 
Council Members shall keep the City Manager informed of their current telephone 
numbers.   
 
Because of the possibility of special and emergency meetings, Council Members should 
normally advise the City Manager if they will be absent from the city for more than 24 
hours. Advising the City Manager of absences is particularly important if the Council 
member will be in a location or involved in an activity that limits electronic 
communication. 
 
Adjournment, Continuance, and Breaks 
 
In order to give fair consideration to all matters, if a meeting is still in progress at 10:00 
P.M.pm, the Council may consider whether it should adjourn and continue unfinished 
agenda items to a future meeting. The decision whether to adjourn before the agenda 
has been completed should normally be made between agenda items, rather than in the 
middle of consideration of an item. If any hearings are postponed to a future meeting, 
the Council normally will give an opportunity to speak to anyone who wishes to 
participate in the hearing and is unable to attend the rescheduled hearing. Any member 
of the Council may request a short break at any time during a Council meeting. 
 
Agenda  
  

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0 pt,
Hanging:  18 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt, First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt, First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Justified



 4

The City Manager shall prepare a written agenda for all regular Council meetings, 
including work sessions and business sessions. A packet including the agenda and 
materials on agenda items will normally be available to the Council at least three days 
before each regularly scheduled Council meeting. The City Manager or Mayor may 
change the agenda at any time prior to the start of the Council meeting, and the 
presiding officer may change the agenda after the start of the meeting. A change in the 
agenda after the start of the Council meeting is a procedural decision.  
 
A. A Councilor who wishes an item to be placed on the written Council agenda shall 

advise the City Manager and/or the Mayor.at least one week prior to the meeting. 
The City Manager and/or the Mayor shall determine whether the item is to be placed 
on the agenda as an action item or as a discussion item. 

 
B. A Council Mmember who wishes staff to undertake major research or drafting to 

prepare an action item shall raise the issue at a Council meeting, and the City 
Manager shall take direction from the Council as a whole. The Council should 
consider requests from individual Council Members in light of Council goals and 
priorities and staff workload and availability. Direction to proceed with an item does 
not commit the Council or any individual Council Mmember to supporting an action 
when it comes before Council for a final decision.   

 
C. The agenda shall be in any form chosen by the City Manager, subject to direction by 

the Council. 
 
Broadcasting Council Meetings 
   
The Council wishes to have regular meetings of the Council broadcast on a public 
access cable television channel and anticipates possible radio broadcasts of Council 
meetings.   
 
The Council intends any broadcasting of Council meetings be unbiased and even-
handed. Any televising of Council meeting should use camera shots that are appropriate 
for the Council, witnesses and audience members and are relevant to the discussion. 
 
Video and audio shall be deleted only for the purpose of conforming withto applicable 
laws governing public broadcasts. Editing for the above purpose and for the insertion of 
informational titles and graphics will be allowed. Portions of recorded Council meetings 
may be used in other news and informational broadcasts provided they are not 
portrayed out of context. 
 
Any time a Council meeting is broadcast under the control of the city, it shall be 
simultaneously recorded and may be rebroadcast.   
 
Cell Phones and Pagers  
  
Cell phones, pagers, and other communications shall be silenced during Council 
meetings. 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 5

 
Consent CalendarAgenda  
  
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, the City Manager shall place all 
items of a routine nature on which no debate is expected on a consent calendaragenda. 
Any item placed on the consent calendaragenda shall be disposed of by a single motion 
“to adopt the consent calendaragenda” which shall not be debatable. Any Councilor or 
the Mayor can remove an item from the consent calendaragenda by voice request prior 
to the vote to adopt the consent calendaragenda. Any matter removed from the consent 
calendaragenda may be considered immediately after the consent calendaragenda or 
may be discussed and considered as an action item at the meeting.   
 
 
 
Decorum. (see also “Order”) 
  
All persons at Council meetings shall behave appropriately, considering the importance 
of Council meetings and the need to proceed with Council business. Except in case of 
injury, persons shall not rest their feet on chairs or tables, or stand on chairs or tables. 
 
The presiding officer has the authority to preserve order at all meetings of the Council, to 
cause the removal of any person from any meeting for disorderly conduct, and to 
enforce the Council Rules. The presiding officer may request the assistance of a 
sergeant-at-arms to restore order at any meeting. 
 
Exhibits  
 
Exhibits presented before the Council in connection with its deliberations on a 
legislative, quasi-judicial or other substantive matter shall be accepted by the Council 
and made part of the record. The exhibit or a copy thereof shall be provided to the 
meeting recorder. 
 
Meeting Procedure 
   
The presiding officer shall make all initial procedural decisions. The Council by majority 
vote may overrule the procedural ruling of the presiding officer.  The City Attorney, if 
requested, shall act as the Council’s parliamentarian, but will have no vote. 
 
Meeting Staffing  
  
The City Manager will attend all Council meetings unless excused. The City Manager 
may make recommendations to the Council and shall have the right to take part in all 
Council discussions but shall have no vote. The City Attorney will attend all regular 
Council meetings unless excused, shall have the right to take part in Council discussion, 
and will, upon request, give an opinion, either written or oral, on legal questions. The 
City Attorney, if requested, shall act as the Council’s parliamentarian, but will have no 
vote. The Ccity Rrecorder or designee shall attend all Council meetings, keep the official 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left:  0
pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 6

minutes, and perform such other duties as may be needed for the orderly conduct of 
meetings. Department directors or other staff will attend Council meetings upon request 
of the City Manager or Council through the City Manager. 
 
Minutes  
  
Minutes shall be prepared with sufficient detail to meet their intended uses. Verbatim 
minutes are not required. 
 
A. Council meeting minutes shall contain: 
  

1. The name of Council Members and staff present. 
 

2. All motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances and measures proposed 
and their disposition. 
 

3. The result of any votes, including ayes and nays and the names of the Council 
Members who voted. 
 

4. The substance of the discussion on any matter. 
   

5. Reference to any document discussed at the meeting. 
 

B. The Council may amend the minutes to more accurately reflect what transpired at a 
meeting. Upon receipt of the minutes in the Council agenda packet, the Council 
Members should read them and if possible submit any changes, additions or 
corrections to the city recorder in order that a corrected copy can be prepared prior to 
the meeting for approval. Under no circumstances shall the minutes be changed 
following approval by the Council, unless the Council authorizes the change by 
majority vote. 

 
Motions  
  
When a motion is made, it shall be clearly and concisely stated by its mover. Council 
Members are encouraged to exercise their ability to make motions and to do so prior to 
debate in order to focus discussion on an issue and speed the Council’s proceedings. 
The presiding officer will state the name of the Council Mmember who made the motion 
and the name of the Council Mmember who made the second. When the Council 
concurs or agrees to an item that does not require a formal motion, the presiding officer 
will summarize the agreement at the conclusion of discussion. The following rules shall 
apply to motions during proceedings of the Council: 
 
A. A motion may be withdrawn by the mover at any time without the consent of the 
 Council. 
 
B. If a motion does not receive a second, it dies. Certain motions can proceed without a 

second, including nominations, withdrawal of motion and agenda order. 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 7

 
C. A motion that receives a tie vote fails. 
 
D. A call for the question is intended to close the debate on the main motion and does 

not require a second and is not debatable. A call for the question fails without a 
majority vote. Debate on the main subject resumes if the motion fails. 

 
E. A motion to amend can be made to a motion that is on the floor and has been 

seconded. An amendment is made by inserting or adding, striking out, striking out 
and inserting, or substituting. 

 
F. A motion to adjourn cannot be amended. 
 
G. A motion to amend an amendment is in order. 
 
H. Amendments are voted on first, then the main motion as amended. 
 
I. Council will discuss a motion only after the motion has been moved and seconded.  

Nothing in this section prevents general discussion or expression of opinions before 
a motion is made. 

 
J. The motion maker, presiding officer, meeting recorder, City Manager or City Attorney 

should repeat the motion prior to voting. 
 
K. A point of order, after being addressed by the presiding officer, may be appealed to 

the body. 
 
News Media 
    
The Council recognizes the important role of the news media in informing the public 
about the decisions, activities and priorities of government. Workspace shall be reserved 
for members of the press at Council meetings so that they may observe and hear 
proceedings clearly. The terms “news media” “press” and “representative of the press” 
for the purpose of these rules are interchangeable and mean someone who: 
 
A. Represents an established channel of communication, such as a newspaper or 

magazine, radio or television station, or other electronic media; and either 
 
B. Regularly reports on the activities of government or the governing body; or 
 
C. Regularly reports on the particular topic to be discussed by the governing body in 

executive session. 
 
Order  
 

Formatted: Justified



 8

A law enforcement officer of the city may be sergeant-at-arms of the Council meetings. 
The sergeant-at-arms shall carry out all orders and instructions given by the presiding 
officer for the purposes of maintaining order and decorum at the Council meeting. 
 
A. Any of the following shall be sufficient cause for the sergeant-at-arms to, at the 

direction of the presiding officer, or by a majority of the Council present, remove any 
person from the Council chamber for the duration of the meeting: 

 
1. Use of unreasonably loud or disruptive language or noise. 

 
2. Engaging in violent or disruptive action, including any violence towards any 

person. 
 

3. Willful damage to city or private property.   
 

4. Refusal to obey these rules or other applicable regulations, including limitations 
on occupancy and seating capacity. 
 

5. Refusal to obey an order of the presiding officer or an order issued by a Councilor 
that has been approved by a majority of the Council present. 

 
B. Before the sergeant-at-arms is directed to remove any person from a Council 

meeting for conduct described in this section, that person shall normally be given a 
warning by the presiding officer to cease his or her conduct. A warning is not 
required in case of immediate threat to person or property. If a meeting is disrupted 
by one or more members of the audience, the presiding officer or a majority of the 
Council present may declare a recess and/or order that the Council chamber be 
cleared. 

 
Order of Business  
  
The City Manager shall arrange the order of business to achieve an orderly and efficient 
meeting. In general, the order of business will be as follows: 
 
I.  Roll Call 
 
II.  Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 
 
III. Public Comment (Normal maximum per person 3 minutes, but may be adjusted 

based on number of persons wishing to comment. Any person who does not get 
an opportunity to comment will be allowed to comment during Agenda Item VIII.) 

 
IIVI.  Proclamations, Recognitions, Special Presentations 
 
IV.  Consent Calendar 
 
V.  Council Members’ Reports and Comments 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 9

  
VI.  Officers’ Reports will consist of reports from the Mayor, City Manager, and 

City Attorney. 
 
VII. Discussion Items (Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as 

presentations, discussion of potential future action items) 
 
VIIVIIII. Action Items (Items expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders or 

ordinances) 
  

Each action item that requires a public hearing shall be clearly identified as a 
public hearing. Public hearings shall be set before other items in this section of 
the agenda. Hearings will be noticed for 7 P.M. 

 
IIX.  Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 
X.  Unfinished Items from IV, V or VI 
 
XI.  Councilor’s Reports and Comments 
 
XII.  Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
Ordinances and Resolutions 
   
All ordinances and resolutions shall be prepared under the supervision of the City 
Manager or City Attorney. Any ordinance or resolution not prepared by the City Attorney 
shall be reviewed and approved as to form by the City Attorney. Ordinances and 
resolutions may be introduced by a member of the Council, the City Manager, the City 
Attorney or any department head.  
 
A. Unless the motion for adoption provides otherwise, resolutions shall be adopted by 

reference to the title or number of the resolution and shall be effective upon adoption. 
A roll-call vote is not required for resolutions unless it is unclear whether a majority 
favor the resolution. 

 
B.  Ordinances shall be adopted as provided by the City Charter. Failure to comply with 

post-adoption signature requirements shall not invalidate an ordinance.  
 

C. Non-emergency ordinances shall be effective on the thirtieth day following the date of 
adoption, unless the ordinance provides that it will become effective at a later time. 
An emergency ordinance which includes a provision that the ordinance is necessary 
for immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health, or safety may 
provide that it will become effective upon adoption or other time less than 30 days 
after adoption. 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0 pt,
Hanging:  36 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 10

 
D. Ordinances shall be adopted by roll-call vote. 
 
Planning Commission Testimony 
   
The Planning Commission was established in compliance with state statute to make 
recommendations to the Ccity Council on general land use issues and to act as a 
hearing body for the city. In an effort to maintain the impartiality of the Planning 
Commission, especially in cases where issues can be remanded by the City Council 
back to the planning commission for review, the following rules are established. For 
legislative land use matters before the Council, commissioners may testify as a 
commissioner, as a commission representative if so designated by the commission, or 
as a citizen.   
 
Presiding Officer  
  
The Mayor shall be the presiding officer and conduct all meetings, preserve order, 
enforce the rules of the Council and determine the order and length of discussion on any 
matter before the Council, subject to these rules. The Council President shall preside in 
the absence of the Mayor. The Mayor may ask the Council President to preside over all 
or part of a meeting at any time to provide the Council President with experience in 
presiding over Council meetings. The presiding officer shall not be deprived of any of the 
rights and privileges of a Council member. In case of the absence of the Mayor and the 
Council President, the City Manager shall call the meeting to order and the Council shall 
elect a chairperson for the meeting by majority vote. The Mayor or Council President 
shall not be considered present if they are disqualified from participation in a matter. 
 
Public Comment at Council Meetings 
   
The Council shall allow a general public comment period at each regularly scheduled 
meeting, but need not allow public comment at emergency and special meetings. 
Comments at the general public comment period should normally be limited to matters 
related to city government and that are properly the object of Council consideration. The 
presiding officer shall exercise discretion in controlling public comment. Comments 
relating to a public hearing that has been closed but not finally resolved are not properly 
the object of Council consideration. Any comments on an item on the Council agenda 
should be made during the discussion of the specific agenda item, rather than in the 
general Council session. The Council may allow comment on any Council action item 
other than an item on which comments have been received and the public testimony 
portion of the hearing or other agenda item has been closed. Comments on any item 
that are expected to come before the Council as a quasi-judicial land use matter shall 
not be permitted outside the scope of the land use hearing on the matter. 
 
Public Hearings and Participation. 
   
Except when a public hearing is expressly required by applicable law, members of the 
public do not have the right to speak on items on the Council agenda. Nevertheless, the 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 11

Council will normally allow public comment on action items, but is not required to do so.  
The Council may limit public comment and may disallow further public comment.   
 
Different public hearings have different standards. If applicable law provides for a public 
hearing but does not regulate the type of hearing, the Council will allow any person with 
a right to a hearing to present written and oral testimony and argument. The Council 
may limit the time of oral testimony and argument.   
 
Some public hearing law provides a right to a hearing to certain persons, but not to 
others. The Council shall allow persons with a right to a hearing to speak, but may 
prohibit or limit participation by others. 
 
Land Use Public Hearings  
 
A. Legislative Hearings: 

 
1. The presiding officer shall announce the nature of the matter to be heard as it is 

set forth on the agenda. 
 

2. Discussion of conflict of interest of Council Members.  
 

3. The presiding officer will then declare the hearing to be open and invite members 
of the audience to be heard in the following order: 

 
a. Staff report of topic, including any material added to the record. 

 
b. Persons wishing to speak on the matter. 

 
c. Additional staff comments. 

 
d. Close of public hearing. 

 
e. Council deliberation and vote. 

 
B. Quasi-Judicial Hearings: Conduct of quasi-judicial hearings shall conform to the 

requirements of state law and applicable ordinances. The procedure shall normally be 
as follows: 

 
1. Announcement of the matter to be heard.   

 
2. Statement of the procedure to be followed.   

 
3. Notice that failure to address a criterion or raise any other issue with sufficient 

specificity precludes an appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals on that criterion or 
issue. 

 
4. Discussion of jurisdiction, impartiality, conflict of interest, ex parte contacts.   



 12

 
5. Staff introduction of appeal, including discussion of additional items included in the 

record.   
 
 6. Appellant’s presentation. 
 

7. Other testimony in support of the appeal. 
  

8. Applicant’s testimony, if not the appellant.    
 

9. Testimony in opposition to the appeal.   
 

10. Neutral testimony.  
 

11. Staff response, if necessary. 
 

12. Appellant’s rebuttal testimony. 
 

13. Applicant’s rebuttal testimony (If not the appellant). 
 

14. Questions from the Council to staff and others for clarification, with opportunity for 
rebuttal. 

 
15. Closure of public hearing, no further information from the audience. 

 
16. Initial discussion by Council. 

 
17. Motion  

 
18. Further discussion. 

 
19. Decision. 
 

The Council has the discretion to adopt findings or direct the staff or prevailing party 
to submit proposed findings for Council consideration and adoption at a future 
meeting.   

 
C. If there are objections to the jurisdiction of the City Council to hear a matter, the 

presiding officer may terminate or continue the hearing if the Council determines it 
lacks jurisdiction or the procedural requirements of any code or ordinance provision 
were not met, or take other action as appropriate under the circumstances. 

 
D. For quasi-judicial review hearings, all written arguments or other documents 

presented to Council for consideration must be submitted to the community 
development department by 5:00 P.M. on the date of the scheduled hearing. All other 
written materials must be presented in person at the hearing. 

 



 13

Public Members Addressing the Council  
  
Each person addressing the Council shall submit a completed testimony form to the City 
Recorder. A separate form must be completed for each item desiring to be addressed.   
 
A. When called by the presiding officer, those wishing to address the Council shall 

come to the designated area and state their name. They shall limit their remarks to 
the time allocated by the presiding officer or Council. They should address all 
remarks to the Council as a body and not to any member thereof. 

 
B. No person, other than the Council, the City Manager, the City Attorney, appropriate 

staff person, and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into any 
discussion, without the permission of the presiding officer. Questions from the public 
shall be asked of a Councilor or staff through the presiding officer. No public member 
will be allowed to speak more than once on a particular agenda item, except where 
rebuttal is required or authorized by law or leave to do so is granted by the Council.   

 
C. Except when public testimony is allowed by right, the presiding officer will determine 

whether public comments will be allowed on specific agenda items. The decision 
whether to allow public testimony will be based on the subject matter, prior 
opportunity for comment, and the length of the particular agenda. Any person making 
personal, offensive, or slanderous remarks, or who becomes threatening or 
personally abusive while addressing the Council may be requested to leave the 
meeting. The presiding officer has the authority to preserve order at all meetings of 
the Council, to cause the removal of any person from any meeting for disorderly 
conduct, and to enforce the rules of the Council Rules. The presiding officer may 
request the assistance of a sergeant-at-arms to restore order at any meeting. 

 
D. Testimony shall be relevant to the topic of the agenda item and not redundant. The 

presiding officer may terminate redundant and/or irrelevant testimony. Pre-hearing 
testimony on quasi-judicial land use actions that may come before the Council will 
not be permitted. 

 
E. The intent of this section is not to stifle public debate, but to provide guidelines to 

allow meaningful and productive comment and debate. 
 
Quorum  
  
The quorum requirement for the conduct of Council business is four Councilo Members 
Members. 
 
Reconsideration of Actions Taken 
   
A member who voted with the majority may move for a reconsideration of an action at 
the same or the next regular meeting. The second of a motion may be a member of the 
minority. Once a matter has been reconsidered, no motion for further reconsideration 
shall be made without unanimous consent of the Council. However, nothing in this 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Comment [PWM1]: moved to Decorum 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 14

section precludes a new motion on the same subject matter as a previous decision with 
the possibility of a different result. 
 
Suspension of Rules  
  
These rules may be suspended upon an affirmative vote of 75 percent of those voting 
when a quorum of the Council is present. Suspension of the rules should only occur in 
cases of extreme necessity.   
 
 
 
Voting  
  
Every Councilo  Mmembers who may legally vote on a motion shall vote on a motion 
unless a majority of the Council present, for special reason, allows the Councilo 
Mmember to abstain. The Councilo  mMeember must declare the intent to abstain prior 
to the vote and explain the reason for the abstention.    
 
A. No Council o Mmember shall be permitted to vote on any subject in which he or she 

has an actual conflict of interest or is otherwise disqualified from participation. 
 
B. The concurrence of a majority of the Councilo  MembeMembers voting when a 

quorum is present at a Council meeting shall be necessary to decide any question 
before the Council.  

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 15

MISCELLANEOUS GENERAL COUNCIL RULES  
 

Annual Report of Boards, Commissions,  and Committees, and Task Forces 
   
At the request of the Council, boards, commissions,  and committees and task forces will 
report to the Council on their activities.    
 
Appointed Positions  
  
The Council appoints and can remove the City Manager, the City Attorney, and the 
Municipal Judge. The Council shall evaluate the City Manager and the City Attorney in 
accordance with their respective contracts, but no less frequently than once a year.  The 
Council may meet with  the Mmunicipal Jjudge once annually, but will not interfere with 
the Mmunicipal Jjudge’s exercise of judicial authority and discretion. 
 
Attendance and Presence in the City 
   
Councilor Memberss will inform the Mayor and/or City Manager if they will be unable to 
attend any meetings. If the Mayor will be absent, the Mayor will inform the City Manager 
and the Council President. Under the Charter, a Council position becomes vacant if the 
Council member is absent from the city for more than 30 days without Council 
permission. The permission to be absent from the city must be requested before the 
absence, or in the case of a family illness or other unforeseen event, prior to the end of 
the 30-day absence. 
 
Communication with Staff   
 
All Council Members shall respect the separation between the Council’s role and the 
City Manager’s responsibilities by: 
 
A. Not interfering with the day-to-day administration of city business, which is the 

responsibility of the City Manager. 
 
B. Working together as a team within a spirit of mutual confidence and support. 
 
C. Respecting the administrative functions of the City Manager, the City Attorney, and 

department heads and refraining from actions that would undermine the authority of 
the City Manager or department heads. The Council will abide by the Ccity Ccharter 
in its dealings with the City Manager and City Attorney. 

 
D. Limiting individual inquiries and requests for information from staff or department 

heads to those questions that may be answered readily as part of staff’s day-to-day 
responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature shall be directed to the City 
Manager or City Attorney. Questions from individual Council Members requiring 
significant staff time or resources (generally, two hours or more) should normally 
require approval of the Council, although the City Manager or the City Attorney may 
determine to follow up on requests from individual Councilor Memberss. Written 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 16

requests for information requested by an individual Council Mmember should 
normally be responded to in writing to the Council as a whole, with a notation as to 
which Council Mmember requested the information. Council Members should 
normally share any information obtained from staff with the entire Council. This 
section is not intended to apply to questions by Council Members acting in their 
individual capacity rather than as Council Members, or to questions regarding conflict 
of interest or similar issues particular to the Council member. 

 
E. Limiting individual contacts with city officers and employees so as to not influence 

staff decisions or recommendations, so as to not interfere with staff work 
performance, and so as to not undermine the authority of the City Manager, 
department heads, and other managerial and supervisory employees.   

 
F. Respecting staff and their roles and responsibilities, even if expressing criticism of an 

action.  
 
Nothing in this section precludes Council Members from obtaining information and 
asking questions during Council meetings or from evaluating the performance of the City 
Manager or City Attorney. 
 
Conduct of Council Members.  
 
A. Non-Participation. A Councilor member shall not participate in a quasi-judicial 

decision if the Council member is biased to the extent that the Council Memberor 
member cannot decide the matter by applying the applicable standards and criteria 
to the facts of the situation as presented to the Council. A Council Memberor 
member shall not participate in any quasi-judicial matter in which the Council 
Membero member has a personal interest in the outcome, unless that personal 
interest is shared by a class of persons. A Council Member o member shall not 
participate in any decision when participation in the decision is contrary to state law. 
Any person may challenge the participation of a Council Membero member at the 
start of the proceeding. If a challenge is made, the Council Membero member may 
choose to withdraw. If the Council Membero member does not withdraw, the 
remainder of the Council will decide by motion whether the Council Memberor 
member will participate. A Council Member o member who is not participating shall 
not sit at the Council table. 

 
B. Conflict of Interest. A Councilo member shall not participate in any matter where 

there is a financial conflict of interest. Under state law, an actual conflict of interest is 
defined as one that would result in the private financial benefit or detriment of the a 
Council Membero member, a relative or a business with which the Council Membero 
member is associated. A potential conflict of interest is one that could result in private 
financial benefit or detriment. A Council Membero member must publicly announce 
potential and actual conflicts of interest each time the issue creating the conflict 
arises before the Council. , and, iIn the case of an actual conflict of interest, the 
Council Member must refrain from participating in debate on the issue andor from 
voting on the issue unless allowed by state law. A Council Membero member who is 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic



 17

not participating because of an actual conflict of interest shall leave the Council table 
after declaring the conflict. 

 
C. Ex Parte Contacts. For quasi-judicial hearings, Councilo Members will endeavor to 

refrain from having ex parte contacts relating to any issue of the hearing. Ex parte 
contacts are any contacts with persons other than staff outside the formal hearing 
process relating to the subject matter of the quasi-judicial hearing. Ex parte contacts 
include both oral and written communication. If a Councilo Mmember has an ex parte 
contact prior to any hearing, the Councilo Mmember will reveal the contact at the 
beginning of the hearing. The Councilo Mmember shall describe the substance of the 
contact. After all declarations of ex parte contacts, the presiding officer shall 
announce the right of interested persons to rebut the substance of the 
communication or otherwise challenge the participation of the Councilo Mmember 
who had the ex parte contact. 

 
D. Absence for Portion of a Hearing. For quasi-judicial hearings, a Councilo Mmember 

who was absent during the presentation of evidence cannot participate in any 
deliberations or decision regarding the matter unless the Councilo Mmember has 
reviewed all the evidence and testimony received. 

 
E. Government Ethics Requirements and Reporting. Councilo Members shall review 

and observe the requirements of the State Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.390) 
dealing with use of public office for private financial gain. Councilo Members shall 
give public notice of any conflict of interestactual or potential conflicts of interest and 
the notice will be reported in the meeting minutes. Councilo Members shall timely file 
annual statements of economic interest with the Government Ethics Commission.   

 
F. Ethical Conduct and Fair Treatment.  In addition to matters of financial interest, 

Councilo Members shall maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct and 
assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims, and transactions coming 
before the Council. This general obligation includes the duty to refrain from: 

 
1. Disclosing confidential information or making use of special knowledge or 

information before it is made available to the general public. 
 

2. Making decisions involving business associates, customers, clients, and 
competitors. 
 

3. Repeated violations of these Council Rrules. 
 

4. Promoting relatives, clients, or employees for boards,  and commissions, 
committees, and task forces. 
 

5. Requesting preferential treatment for themselves, relatives, associates, clients, 
coworkers, or friends. 
 

6. Seeking employment of relatives with the city. 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  18 pt,
Hanging:  18 pt

Formatted: Justified



 18

 
7. Actions benefiting special interest groups at the expense of the city as a whole. 

  
8. Expressing an opinion contrary to the official position of the Council without so 

stating. 
 
G. General Conduct. In general, Councilo Members shall conduct themselves so as to 

bring credit upon the government of the city by respecting the rule of law, ensuring 
non-discriminatory delivery of public services, keeping informed concerning the 
matters coming before the Council and abiding by all decisions of the Council, 
whether or not the member voted on the prevailing side. 

 
H. Participation in Council Meetings. Any Council Memberor desiring to be heard during 

a Council meeting should normally be recognized by the presiding officer and shall 
confine his or her remarks to the subject under consideration or to be considered.  
Councilo Members will speak one at a time, allowing one another to finish. The 
presiding officer may allow flexibility in the application of this rule. 

 
Conferences and Seminars  
  
Councilo Mmembers are urged to educate themselves about local government. To that 
end, and as funding allows, Councilo Members are urged to attend the League of 
Oregon Cities functions at city expense. Requests to attend other government- related 
conferences, training, seminars, and meetings will be presented to the Council for 
approval. Councilo Members who serve on committees or the boards of the League of 
Oregon Cities, the National League of Cities, or other similar associations of local 
governments will be reimbursed for reasonable expenses not covered by the respective 
body.  
 
Confidentiality  
  
Councilo Members will keep all written materials provided to them on matters of 
confidentiality under law in complete confidence to ensure that the city’s position is not 
compromised. No mention of confidential information read or heard should be made to 
anyone other than other Councilo Members, the City Manager, the City Attorney, or 
responsible department heads. 
  
A. If the Council in executive session provides direction or consensus to staff on 

proposed terms and conditions for any type of negotiation whether it be related to 
property acquisition or disposal, pending or likely claim or litigation, or employee 
negotiations, all contact with other parties shall be made by designated staff or 
representatives handling the negotiations or litigation. A Councilo Mmember will not 
have any contact or discussion with any other party or its representative nor 
communicate any executive session discussion, except as authorized by Council. 

 
B. All public statements, information, or press releases relating to a confidential matter 

will be handled by the City Manager or other person authorized by the Council. 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 19

 
C. The Council, by resolution or motion, may censure a member who discloses a 

confidential matter. 
 
 
 
 
 
Contacts with Organizations 
   
The City Council will seek meetings with the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, 
the Lincoln County School District Board, the Port of Newport, and other local 
governments, and groups, as needed to address issues of common interest. The City 
Council will allow local groups such as the Cchamber of Ccommerce, and local 
business, neighborhood or citizens groups, to make presentations to the Council on 
matters of common interest. 
 
Expenses, Reimbursement and Compensation  
  
Councilo Members shall receive no pay or other compensation for serving on the 
Council. Council o Members will follow the same rules and procedures for 
reimbursement as those which apply to city employees, when seeking reimbursement 
for attendance at authorized conferences or other authorized reimbursement. The city 
does not reimburse Councilo Members for expenses incurred by their spouses and/or 
guests. 
 
Gifts by the Council  
  
On occasion, and within the approved budget, the Council may wish to purchase a gift or 
memento for someone with city funds. Expenditures of this type shall require consensus 
approval of the Council. 
 
Legal Advice 
   
Requests to the City Attorney for advice requiring extensive legal research shall not be 
made by an individual Councilo Mmember except with the concurrence of the majority of 
the Council. 
 
Liaison to Boards, Commissions and Committees  
 
The Mayor may appoint Councilo Meembers to act as liaison to boards, commissions, 
committees, or other bodies that advise the Council. In the event a Council liaison is 
unable to attend a meeting of the board, commission, or committee, the liaison will either 
contact another Councilo member to act as liaison for the meeting or ask the Mayor to 
find a substitute.   
 

Formatted: Justified, None, Indent: Left:  0 pt,
Hanging:  18 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, None, Indent: Left:  0 pt,
Hanging:  18 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 20

When attending a meeting of a city board, commission ,commission, or committee, or 
task force as liaison, Council Members will: 
 
A. Not attempt to lobby or influence the board, commission, or committee, or task force 

on any item under its consideration. It is important for the advisory body to make 
objective recommendations to the Council on items before them. However, nothing in 
this section precludes the Councilo Mmember from asking questions, making 
comments, explaining what the Council expects from the board, commission, or 
committee, or task force or explaining Council policy.   

 
B. Not vote at the body’s meeting on any item. 
 

This rule applies only when the Councilo Mmember is acting as liaison; it does not 
apply when the Councilo Mmember is a member of the board, commission, or 
committee, or task force and does not apply to non-city bodies when the Councilo 
Mmember is the representative of the city. 

 
Litigation  
  
The Council will meet in executive session with the City Manager and City Attorney 
within 30 days of the city’s receipt of: 
 
A. A statutory notice of intent to sue, or 
 
B. A summons and complaint for damages. 
 
This requirement does not apply to cases in which the claim is covered by insurance. 
 
The City Manager and City Attorney will provide the Council with a report of all claims 
filed against the city. 
 
Public Records 
   
The disposition of public records created or received by individual Councilo Members 
shall be in accordance with Oregon Ppublic Rrecords Llaw. Written information 
incidental to the official duties of a member of the City Council, including electronic mail 
messages, notes, memos, and calendars (e.g., “Daytimers”) are public records and are 
subject to disclosure under the public records law. 
 
Representing the City   
 
When a member of the City Council represents the city before another governmental 
agency, before a community organization or media, the official should first indicate the 
majority position of the Council if there is one. Personal opinions and comments may be 
expressed only if the Councilo Mmember clarifies that those statements do not 
represent the position of the Council. 
 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 21

A. The effectiveness of city lobbying in Salem or in Washington, D.C., depends on the 
clarity of the city’s voice. When Councilo Members represent the city in a “lobbying” 
situation, it is appropriate that the Councilo Members avoid expressions of personal 
dissent from an adopted Council policy. 

 
B. When Councilo Meembers attend meetings of organizations such as the League of 

Oregon Cities or the National League of Cities and their boards and committees, they 
do so as individual elected officials and are free to express their individual views. If 
the City Council has an adopted policy relating to an issue under discussion, the 
Councilol Mmember is expected to report that fact. 

 
C. By resolution, the Council may appoint one or two of its members to act as 

negotiators with groups, individuals, or other governmental entities. Any agreements 
made by such negotiators shall require approval of the Council as a whole to take 
effect. 

 
Vacancies on Boards, Commissions and Committees   
 
The Mayor, subject to ratification bywith the consent of the Council, shall appoint all 
members of boards, commissions, and committees, and task forces, and appoint 
persons to fill all vacancies. The City Manager will seek applications from interested 
candidates. The Council may, and normally will, interview applicants for the Planning 
Commission and Budget Committee.   
 
Vacancies on the Council  
  
Upon declaring a vacancy on the City Council, the Council will fill the vacancy under 
provisions of the Ccity Ccharter. The vacancy will be advertised and applications will be 
accepted. After the filing deadline has passed, the Council will conduct public interviews 
of all applicants. The Council will make a decision to fill the vacancy in a public meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



 
 
 
 

City of Newport 
 
 

COUNCIL RULES 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE JUNE 1, 2009 
 
      Revision Draft  02-14-11



 
 

INDEX 
 

RULES GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
     TYPES OF MEETINGS: 1 
 
Regular Meetings .......................................................................................................................... 1 
Special Meetings ........................................................................................................................... 1 
Emergency Meetings .................................................................................................................... 2 
Work Sessions .............................................................................................................................. 2 
Executive Sessions ....................................................................................................................... 2 
  
     MEETING PROCEDURE: 3 
 
Requirements of all Meetings……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..3 
Adjournment, Continuance, and Breaks ....................................................................................... 3 
Agenda .......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Broadcasting Council Meetings .................................................................................................... 4 
Cell Phones and Pagers ............................................................................................................... 4 
Consent Calendar ......................................................................................................................... 4 
Decorum ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
Exhibits ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
Meeting Procedure ........................................................................................................................ 5 
Meeting Staffing ............................................................................................................................ 5 
Minutes ......................................................................................................................................... 5 
Motions ......................................................................................................................................... 5 
News Media .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Order ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
Order of Business ......................................................................................................................... 7 
Ordinances and Resolutions ......................................................................................................... 8 
Planning Commission Testimony .................................................................................................. 9 
Presiding Officer ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Public Comment at Council Meetings ........................................................................................... 9 
Public Hearings and Participation ................................................................................................. 9 
Public Addressing the Council .................................................................................................... 11 
Quorum ....................................................................................................................................... 12 
Reconsideration of Actions Taken .............................................................................................. 12 
Suspension of Rules ................................................................................................................... 12 
Voting .............................................................................................................................. 13 
 

 i



 ii

 GENERAL COUNCIL RULES 14 
 
Annual Report of Boards, Commissions and Committees .......................................................... 14 
Appointed Positions .................................................................................................................... 14 
Attendance and Presence in the City .......................................................................................... 14 
Communication with Staff ........................................................................................................... 14 
Conduct of Council Members ...................................................................................................... 15 
Conferences and Seminars ........................................................................................................ 17 
Confidentiality  ............................................................................................................................ 17 
Contacts with Organizations ....................................................................................................... 17 
Expenses, Reimbursement and Compensation .......................................................................... 18 
Gifts by the Council ..................................................................................................................... 18 
Legal Advice ............................................................................................................................... 18 
Liaison to Boards, Commissions and Committees ...................................................................... 18 
Litigation ...................................................................................................................................... 19 
Public Records ............................................................................................................................ 19 
Representing the City ................................................................................................................. 19 
Vacancies on Boards, Commissions and Committees ............................................................... 19 
Vacancies on the Council ........................................................................................................... 20 



These rules are authorized by the City Charter. The Council shall review these rules 
periodically. Amendments shall be adopted by a majority of the entire Council. The 
Council Rules are not intended to replace or supersede any applicable federal or state 
laws or regulations, city ordinances or policies, or provisions of the City Charter. 
 
If an interpretation of Council Rules is necessary, the interpretation will be provided by 
the City Council in consultation with city staff. 
 
 
RULES GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
TYPES OF MEETINGS 
 
The Council may hold regular, special or emergency meetings. A regular meeting is one 
held on the Council’s normal meeting schedule. A special meeting is one held at a time 
other than a regularly scheduled meeting time, but with at least 24 hours notice. An 
emergency meeting is one held on less than 24 hours notice. All Council meetings and 
sessions shall be held in compliance with Oregon public meeting law. 
 
The anticipation is that most formal actions (ordinances, resolutions, orders and 
motions) will occur at business sessions.  All Council meetings shall be open to the 
public, except executive sessions. The Council may, by motion, go into executive 
session at any regular, special or emergency meeting. 
 
Regular Meetings   
 
The Council will meet regularly on the first and third Mondays of each month in the 
Council Chambers. If a regularly scheduled Council meeting time is on a city holiday, 
the meeting will be held on the first day that is not a city holiday. In addition, the Council 
will hold a work session on the day of each regular Council meeting. The Council may 
from time to time hold additional work sessions to address major matters. . 
 
Special Meetings 
   
A.  Special meetings are called by: 
 

• The Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the President of the Council, at their 
discretion 

• The Council at the request of two or more members of the Council, or 
• The City Manager  

 
B. Written notice of a special meeting shall be directed to each member of the Council 

at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. The notice shall be served on each 
member personally, telephonically, or electronically, or if the Council Member is not 
found, left at his or her place of residence or business.. 

 
 

 1



 
 
 
Emergency Meetings 
   
An emergency meeting may be called by the City Manager, the Mayor, or two 
Councilors, consistent with state law. The minutes of the emergency meeting shall 
describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours notice. The city shall attempt to 
contact the media and other interested persons to inform them of the meeting. 
 
 Work Sessions 
 
Work sessions are any regular, special or emergency meetings used to present 
information to Council, to allow the Council to prepare for regular sessions or   to allow 
preliminary discussion on upcoming Council items. The Council may take formal action 
at a work session, but formal action items will not normally be scheduled for work 
sessions. 
 
Executive Sessions  
  
An executive session (meeting closed to the public) may be held in accordance with 
state law. Care will be taken to ensure that proper and timely notice is made in 
accordance with statutory requirements. Executive sessions may be held during regular, 
special or emergency meetings, so long as appropriate statutory requirements are met. 
 
A. No formal actions can be taken during an executive session. When the Council 

reconvenes in open session, formal action may be taken. Only the Council, City 
Manager, City Recorder, City Attorney, news media representatives and others 
invited by the Council or City Manager may attend an executive session.  

 
B. A major reason for allowing members of the news media to attend executive 

sessions is to ensure that the issues discussed are proper subjects and actions 
under the state laws related to executive sessions and to keep the media informed 
concerning the background of deliberations so they have a better understanding of 
any decisions made as a result of the meeting. Members of the press shall be told 
that they may not report the substance of an executive session. 

 
C.  Minutes or a recording of executive sessions are required.   
 
D. Information discussed during an executive session and other privileged 

communications should not be disclosed to persons other than Council Members, 
the City Manager, City Recorder or City Attorney outside the executive session. 

 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE 
 
Requirements of all Meetings 

 2



 
All notice requirements of state law shall be satisfied before any Council meeting can be 
conducted. 
 
Council Members shall keep the City Manager informed of their current telephone 
numbers.   
 
Because of the possibility of special and emergency meetings, Council Members should 
normally advise the City Manager if they will be absent from the city for more than 24 
hours. Advising the City Manager of absences is particularly important if the Council 
member will be in a location or involved in an activity that limits electronic 
communication. 
 
Adjournment, Continuance, and Breaks 
 
In order to give fair consideration to all matters, if a meeting is still in progress at 10:00 
P.M., the Council may consider whether it should adjourn and continue unfinished 
agenda items to a future meeting. The decision whether to adjourn before the agenda 
has been completed should normally be made between agenda items, rather than in the 
middle of consideration of an item. If any hearings are postponed to a future meeting, 
the Council normally will give an opportunity to speak to anyone who wishes to 
participate in the hearing and is unable to attend the rescheduled hearing. Any member 
of the Council may request a short break at any time during a Council meeting. 
 
Agenda  
  
The City Manager shall prepare a written agenda for all regular Council meetings. A 
packet including the agenda and materials on agenda items will normally be available to 
the Council at least three days before each regularly scheduled Council meeting. The 
City Manager or Mayor may change the agenda at any time prior to the start of the 
Council meeting, and the presiding officer may change the agenda after the start of the 
meeting. A change in the agenda after the start of the Council meeting is a procedural 
decision.  
 
A. A Councilor who wishes an item to be placed on the written Council agenda shall 

advise the City Manager and/or the Mayor. The City Manager and/or the Mayor shall 
determine whether the item is to be placed on the agenda as an action item or as a 
discussion item. 

 
B. A Council Member who wishes staff to undertake major research or drafting to 

prepare an action item shall raise the issue at a Council meeting, and the City 
Manager shall take direction from the Council as a whole. Direction to proceed with 
an item does not commit the Council or any individual Council Member to supporting 
an action when it comes before Council for a final decision.   

 
C. The agenda shall be in any form chosen by the City Manager, subject to direction by 

the Council. 

 3



 
Broadcasting Council Meetings 
   
The Council wishes to have regular meetings of the Council broadcast on a public 
access cable television channel and anticipates possible radio broadcasts of Council 
meetings.   
 
The Council intends any broadcasting of Council meetings be unbiased and even-
handed. Any televising of Council meeting should use camera shots that are appropriate 
for the Council, witnesses and audience members and are relevant to the discussion. 
 
Video and audio shall be deleted only for the purpose of conforming to applicable laws 
governing public broadcasts. Editing for the above purpose and for the insertion of 
informational titles and graphics will be allowed. Portions of recorded Council meetings 
may be used in other news and informational broadcasts provided they are not 
portrayed out of context. 
 
Any time a Council meeting is broadcast under the control of the city, it shall be 
simultaneously recorded and may be rebroadcast.   
 
Cell Phones and Pagers  
  
Cell phones, pagers, and other communications shall be silenced during Council 
meetings. 
 
Consent Calendar 
  
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, the City Manager shall place all 
items of a routine nature on which no debate is expected on a consent calendar. Any 
item placed on the consent calendar shall be disposed of by a single motion “to adopt 
the consent calendar” which shall not be debatable. Any Councilor or the Mayor can 
remove an item from the consent calendar by voice request prior to the vote to adopt the 
consent calendar. Any matter removed from the consent calendar may be considered 
immediately after the consent calendar or may be discussed and considered as an 
action item at the meeting.   
 
 
Decorum   (see also “Order”) 
  
All persons at Council meetings shall behave appropriately, considering the importance 
of Council meetings and the need to proceed with Council business. Except in case of 
injury, persons shall not rest their feet on chairs or tables, or stand on chairs or tables.  
The presiding officer has the authority to preserve order at all meetings of the Council, 
to cause the removal of any person from any meeting for disorderly conduct, and to 
enforce the Council Rules. The presiding officer may request the assistance of a 
sergeant-at-arms to restore order at any meeting. 
 

 4



Exhibits  
 
Exhibits presented before the Council in connection with its deliberations on a 
legislative, quasi-judicial or other substantive matter shall be accepted by the Council 
and made part of the record. The exhibit or a copy thereof shall be provided to the 
meeting recorder. 
 
Meeting Procedure 
   
The presiding officer shall make all initial procedural decisions. The Council by majority 
vote may overrule the procedural ruling of the presiding officer.  The City Attorney, if 
requested, shall act as the Council’s parliamentarian, but will have no vote. 
 
Meeting Staffing  
  
The City Manager will attend all Council meetings unless excused. The City Manager 
may make recommendations to the Council and shall have the right to take part in all 
Council discussions but shall have no vote. The City Attorney will attend all regular 
Council meetings unless excused, shall have the right to take part in Council discussion, 
and will, upon request, give an opinion, either written or oral, on legal questions. The 
City Recorder or designee shall attend all Council meetings, keep the official minutes, 
and perform such other duties as may be needed for the orderly conduct of meetings. 
Department directors or other staff will attend Council meetings upon request of the City 
Manager or Council through the City Manager. 
 
Minutes  
  
Minutes shall be prepared with sufficient detail to meet their intended uses. Verbatim 
minutes are not required. 
 
A. Council meeting minutes shall contain: 
  

1. The name of Council Members and staff present. 
 

2. All motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances and measures proposed 
and their disposition. 
 

3. The result of any votes, including ayes and nays and the names of the Council 
Members who voted. 
 

4. The substance of the discussion on any matter. 
   

5. Reference to any document discussed at the meeting. 
 

B. The Council may amend the minutes to more accurately reflect what transpired at a 
meeting. Upon receipt of the minutes in the Council agenda packet, the Council 
Members should read them and if possible submit any changes, additions or 

 5



corrections to the city recorder in order that a corrected copy can be prepared prior 
to the meeting for approval. Under no circumstances shall the minutes be changed 
following approval by the Council, unless the Council authorizes the change by 
majority vote. 

 
Motions  
  
When a motion is made, it shall be clearly and concisely stated by its mover. Council 
Members are encouraged to exercise their ability to make motions and to do so prior to 
debate in order to focus discussion on an issue and speed the Council’s proceedings. 
The presiding officer will state the name of the Council Member who made the motion 
and the name of the Council Member who made the second. When the Council concurs 
or agrees to an item that does not require a formal motion, the presiding officer will 
summarize the agreement at the conclusion of discussion. The following rules shall 
apply to motions during proceedings of the Council: 
 
A. A motion may be withdrawn by the mover at any time without the consent of the 
 Council. 
 
B. If a motion does not receive a second, it dies.  
 
C. A motion that receives a tie vote fails. 
 
D. A call for the question is intended to close the debate on the main motion and does 

not require a second and is not debatable. A call for the question fails without a 
majority vote. Debate on the main subject resumes if the motion fails. 

 
E. A motion to amend can be made to a motion that is on the floor and has been 

seconded. An amendment is made by inserting or adding, striking out, striking out 
and inserting, or substituting. 

 
F. A motion to adjourn cannot be amended. 
 
G. A motion to amend an amendment is in order. 
 
H. Amendments are voted on first, then the main motion as amended. 
 
I. Council will discuss a motion only after the motion has been moved and seconded.  

Nothing in this section prevents general discussion or expression of opinions before 
a motion is made. 

 
J. The motion maker, presiding officer, meeting recorder, City Manager or City Attorney 

should repeat the motion prior to voting. 
 
K. A point of order, after being addressed by the presiding officer, may be appealed to 

the body. 
 

 6



News Media 
    
The Council recognizes the important role of the news media in informing the public 
about the decisions, activities and priorities of government. Workspace shall be 
reserved for members of the press at Council meetings so that they may observe and 
hear proceedings clearly. The terms “news media” “press” and “representative of the 
press” for the purpose of these rules are interchangeable and mean someone who: 
 
A. Represents an established channel of communication, such as a newspaper or 

magazine, radio or television station, or other electronic media; and either 
 
B. Regularly reports on the activities of government or the governing body; or 
 
C. Regularly reports on the particular topic to be discussed by the governing body in 

executive session. 
 
Order  
 
A law enforcement officer of the city may be sergeant-at-arms of the Council meetings. 
The sergeant-at-arms shall carry out all orders and instructions given by the presiding 
officer for the purposes of maintaining order and decorum at the Council meeting. 
 
A. Any of the following shall be sufficient cause for the sergeant-at-arms to, at the 

direction of the presiding officer, or by a majority of the Council present, remove any 
person from the Council chamber for the duration of the meeting: 

 
1. Use of unreasonably loud or disruptive language or noise. 

 
2. Engaging in violent or disruptive action, including any violence towards any 

person. 
 

3. Willful damage to city or private property.   
 

4. Refusal to obey these rules or other applicable regulations, including limitations 
on occupancy and seating capacity. 
 

5. Refusal to obey an order of the presiding officer or an order issued by a Councilor 
that has been approved by a majority of the Council present. 

 
B. Before the sergeant-at-arms is directed to remove any person from a Council 

meeting for conduct described in this section, that person shall normally be given a 
warning by the presiding officer to cease his or her conduct. A warning is not 
required in case of immediate threat to person or property. If a meeting is disrupted 
by one or more members of the audience, the presiding officer or a majority of the 
Council present may declare a recess and/or order that the Council chamber be 
cleared. 

 

 7



Order of Business  
  
The City Manager shall arrange the order of business to achieve an orderly and efficient 
meeting. In general, the order of business will be as follows: 
 
I. Roll Call 
 
II. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 
 
III. Public Comment (Normal maximum per person 3 minutes, but may be adjusted 

based on number of persons wishing to comment.) 
 
IV. Proclamations, Recognitions, Special Presentations 
 
V. Consent Calendar 
 
VI. Officers’ Reports will consist of reports from the Mayor, City Manager, and City 

Attorney 
 
VII. Discussion Items (Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as 

presentations, discussion of potential future action items) 
 
VIII. Action Items (Items expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders or 

ordinances).  Each action item that requires a public hearing shall be clearly 
identified as a public hearing. Public hearings shall be set before other items in 
this section of the agenda. Hearings will be noticed for 7 P.M. 

 
IX. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 
X. Unfinished Items from IV, V or VI 
 
XI. Councilor’s Reports and Comments 
 
XII. Adjournment 
 
 
Ordinances and Resolutions 
   
All ordinances and resolutions shall be prepared under the supervision of the City 
Manager or City Attorney. Any ordinance or resolution not prepared by the City Attorney 
shall be reviewed and approved as to form by the City Attorney. Ordinances and 
resolutions may be introduced by a member of the Council, the City Manager, the City 
Attorney or any department head.  
 
A. Unless the motion for adoption provides otherwise, resolutions shall be adopted by 

reference to the title or number of the resolution and shall be effective upon 

 8



adoption. A roll-call vote is not required for resolutions unless it is unclear whether a 
majority favor the resolution. 

 
B.  Ordinances shall be adopted as provided by the City Charter. Failure to comply with 

post-adoption signature requirements shall not invalidate an ordinance.  
 

C. Non-emergency ordinances shall be effective on the thirtieth day following the date 
of adoption, unless the ordinance provides that it will become effective at a later 
time. An emergency ordinance which includes a provision that the ordinance is 
necessary for immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health, or safety 
may provide that it will become effective upon adoption or other time less than 30 
days after adoption. 

 
D. Ordinances shall be adopted by roll-call vote. 
 
Planning Commission Testimony 
   
The Planning Commission was established in compliance with state statute to make 
recommendations to the City Council on general land use issues and to act as a hearing 
body for the city. For legislative land use matters before the Council, commissioners 
may testify as a commissioner, as a commission representative if so designated by the 
commission, or as a citizen.   
 
Presiding Officer  
  
The Mayor shall be the presiding officer and conduct all meetings, preserve order, 
enforce the rules of the Council and determine the order and length of discussion on any 
matter before the Council, subject to these rules. The Council President shall preside in 
the absence of the Mayor. The Mayor may ask the Council President to preside over all 
or part of a meeting at any time to provide the Council President with experience in 
presiding over Council meetings. The presiding officer shall not be deprived of any of 
the rights and privileges of a Council member. In case of the absence of the Mayor and 
the Council President, the City Manager shall call the meeting to order and the Council 
shall elect a chairperson for the meeting by majority vote. The Mayor or Council 
President shall not be considered present if they are disqualified from participation in a 
matter. 
 
Public Comment at Council Meetings 
   
The Council shall allow a general public comment period at each regularly scheduled 
meeting, but need not allow public comment at emergency and special meetings. 
Comments at the general public comment period should normally be limited to matters 
related to city government and that are properly the object of Council consideration. The 
presiding officer shall exercise discretion in controlling public comment. Comments 
relating to a public hearing that has been closed but not finally resolved are not properly 
the object of Council consideration. Any comments on an item on the Council agenda 
should be made during the discussion of the specific agenda item, rather than in the 

 9



general Council session. The Council may allow comment on any Council action item 
other than an item on which comments have been received and the public testimony 
portion of the hearing or other agenda item has been closed. Comments on any item 
that are expected to come before the Council as a quasi-judicial land use matter shall 
not be permitted outside the scope of the land use hearing on the matter. 
 
Public Hearings and Participation. 
   
Except when a public hearing is expressly required by applicable law, members of the 
public do not have the right to speak on items on the Council agenda. Nevertheless, the 
Council will normally allow public comment on action items, but is not required to do so.  
The Council may limit public comment and may disallow further public comment.   
 
Different public hearings have different standards. If applicable law provides for a public 
hearing but does not regulate the type of hearing, the Council will allow any person with 
a right to a hearing to present written and oral testimony and argument. The Council 
may limit the time of oral testimony and argument.   
 
Some public hearing law provides a right to a hearing to certain persons, but not to 
others. The Council shall allow persons with a right to a hearing to speak, but may 
prohibit or limit participation by others. 
 
Public Addressing the Council  
  
Each person addressing the Council shall submit a completed testimony form to the City 
Recorder. A separate form must be completed for each item desiring to be addressed.   
 
A. When called by the presiding officer, those wishing to address the Council shall 

come to the designated area and state their name. They shall limit their remarks to 
the time allocated by the presiding officer or Council. They should address all 
remarks to the Council as a body and not to any member thereof. 

 
B. No person, other than the Council, the City Manager, the City Attorney, appropriate 

staff person, and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into any 
discussion, without the permission of the presiding officer. Questions from the public 
shall be asked of a Councilor or staff through the presiding officer.   

 
C. Any person making personal, offensive, or slanderous remarks, or who becomes 

threatening or personally abusive while addressing the Council may be requested to 
leave the meeting.  

 
D. Testimony shall be relevant to the topic of the agenda item and not redundant. The 

presiding officer may terminate redundant and/or irrelevant testimony. Pre-hearing 
testimony on quasi-judicial land use actions that may come before the Council will 
not be permitted. 

 

 10



E. The intent of this section is not to stifle public debate, but to provide guidelines to 
allow meaningful and productive comment and debate. 

 
Quorum  
  
The quorum requirement for the conduct of Council business is four Council Members. 
 
Reconsideration of Actions Taken 
   
A member who voted with the majority may move for a reconsideration of an action at 
the same or the next regular meeting. The second of a motion may be a member of the 
minority. Once a matter has been reconsidered, no motion for further reconsideration 
shall be made without unanimous consent of the Council. However, nothing in this 
section precludes a new motion on the same subject matter as a previous decision with 
the possibility of a different result. 
 
Suspension of Rules  
  
These rules may be suspended upon an affirmative vote of 75 percent of those voting 
when a quorum of the Council is present. Suspension of the rules should only occur in 
cases of extreme necessity.   
 
Voting  
  
Every Council Members who may legally vote on a motion shall vote on a motion unless 
a majority of the Council present, for special reason, allows the Council Member to 
abstain. The Council Member must declare the intent to abstain prior to the vote and 
explain the reason for the abstention.    
 
A. No Council  Member shall be permitted to vote on any subject in which he or she has 

an actual conflict of interest or is otherwise disqualified from participation. 
 
B. The concurrence of a majority of the Council Members voting when a quorum is 

present at a Council meeting shall be necessary to decide any question before the 
Council.  

 11



 GENERAL COUNCIL RULES  
 

Annual Report of Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Task Forces 
   
At the request of the Council, boards, commissions, committees and task forces will 
report to the Council on their activities.    
 
Appointed Positions  
  
The Council appoints and can remove the City Manager, the City Attorney, and the 
Municipal Judge. The Council shall evaluate the City Manager and the City Attorney in 
accordance with their respective contracts, but no less frequently than once a year.  The 
Council may meet with the Municipal Judge once annually, but will not interfere with the 
Municipal Judge’s exercise of judicial authority and discretion. 
 
Attendance and Presence in the City 
   
Councilor Members will inform the Mayor and/or City Manager if they will be unable to 
attend any meetings. If the Mayor will be absent, the Mayor will inform the City Manager 
and the Council President. Under the Charter, a Council position becomes vacant if the 
Council member is absent from the city for more than 30 days without Council 
permission. The permission to be absent from the city must be requested before the 
absence, or in the case of a family illness or other unforeseen event, prior to the end of 
the 30-day absence. 
 
Communication with Staff   
 
All Council Members shall respect the separation between the Council’s role and the 
City Manager’s responsibilities by: 
 
A. Not interfering with the day-to-day administration of city business, which is the 

responsibility of the City Manager. 
 
B. Working together as a team within a spirit of mutual confidence and support. 
 
C. Respecting the administrative functions of the City Manager, the City Attorney, and 

department heads and refraining from actions that would undermine the authority of 
the City Manager or department heads. The Council will abide by the City Charter in 
its dealings with the City Manager and City Attorney. 

 
D. Limiting individual inquiries and requests for information from staff or department 

heads to those questions that may be answered readily as part of staff’s day-to-day 
responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature shall be directed to the City 
Manager or City Attorney. Questions from individual Council Members requiring 
significant staff time or resources (generally, two hours or more) should normally 
require approval of the Council, although the City Manager or the City Attorney may 
determine to follow up on requests from Councilor Members. Written requests for 

 12



information requested by an individual Council Member should normally be 
responded to in writing to the Council as a whole, with a notation as to which Council 
Member requested the information. Council Members should normally share any 
information obtained from staff with the entire Council. This section is not intended to 
apply to questions by Council Members acting in their individual capacity rather than 
as Council Members, or to questions regarding conflict of interest or similar issues 
particular to the Council member. 

 
E. Limiting individual contacts with city officers and employees so as to not influence 

staff decisions or recommendations, so as to not interfere with staff work 
performance, and so as to not undermine the authority of the City Manager, 
department heads, and other managerial and supervisory employees.   

 
F. Respecting staff and their roles and responsibilities, even if expressing criticism of 

an action.  
 
Nothing in this section precludes Council Members from obtaining information and 
asking questions during Council meetings or from evaluating the performance of the City 
Manager or City Attorney. 
 
Conduct of Council Members.  
 
A. Non-Participation. A Councilor shall not participate in a quasi-judicial decision if the 

Council member is biased to the extent that the Council Member cannot decide the 
matter by applying the applicable standards and criteria to the facts of the situation 
as presented to the Council. A Council Member shall not participate in any quasi-
judicial matter in which the Council Member has a personal interest in the outcome, 
unless that personal interest is shared by a class of persons. A Council Member r 
shall not participate in any decision when participation in the decision is contrary to 
state law. Any person may challenge the participation of a Council Member at the 
start of the proceeding. If a challenge is made, the Council Member may choose to 
withdraw. If the Council Member does not withdraw, the remainder of the Council will 
decide by motion whether the Council Member will participate. A Council Member r 
who is not participating shall not sit at the Council table. 

 
B. Conflict of Interest. Under state law, an actual conflict of interest is defined as one 

that would result in private financial benefit or detriment of a Council Member, a 
relative or a business with which the Council Member is associated. A potential 
conflict of interest is one that could result in private financial benefit or detriment. A 
Council Member must publicly announce potential and actual conflicts of interest 
each time the issue creating the conflict arises before the Council. In the case of an 
actual conflict of interest, the Council Member must refrain from participating in 
debate on the issue and from voting unless allowed by state law. A Council Member 
who is not participating because of an actual conflict of interest shall leave the 
Council table after declaring the conflict. 

 

 13



C. Ex Parte Contacts. For quasi-judicial hearings, Council Members will endeavor to 
refrain from having ex parte contacts relating to any issue of the hearing. Ex parte 
contacts are any contacts with persons other than staff outside the formal hearing 
process relating to the subject matter of the quasi-judicial hearing. Ex parte contacts 
include both oral and written communication. If a Council Member has an ex parte 
contact prior to any hearing, the Council Member will reveal the contact at the 
beginning of the hearing. The Council Member shall describe the substance of the 
contact. After all declarations of ex parte contacts, the presiding officer shall 
announce the right of interested persons to rebut the substance of the 
communication or otherwise challenge the participation of the Council Member who 
had the ex parte contact. 

 
D. Absence for Portion of a Hearing. For quasi-judicial hearings, a Council Member who 

was absent during the presentation of evidence cannot participate in any 
deliberations or decision regarding the matter unless the Council Member has 
reviewed all the evidence and testimony received. 

 
E. Government Ethics Requirements and Reporting. Council Members shall review and 

observe the requirements of the State Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.390) dealing 
with use of public office for private financial gain. Council Members shall give public 
notice of any actual or potential conflict of interest and the notice will be reported in 
the meeting minutes. Council Members shall timely file annual statements of 
economic interest with the Government Ethics Commission.   

 
F. Ethical Conduct and Fair Treatment.  In addition to matters of financial interest, 

Council Members shall maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct and assure 
fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims, and transactions coming before the 
Council. This general obligation includes the duty to refrain from: 

 
1. Disclosing confidential information or making use of special knowledge or 

information before it is made available to the general public. 
 

2. Making decisions involving business associates, customers, clients, and 
competitors. 
 

3. Repeated violations of these Council Rules. 
 

4. Promoting relatives, clients, or employees for boards, commissions, committees, 
and task forces. 
 

5. Requesting preferential treatment for themselves, relatives, associates, clients, 
coworkers, or friends. 
 

6. Seeking employment of relatives with the city. 
 

7. Actions benefiting special interest groups at the expense of the city as a whole. 
  

 14



8. Expressing an opinion contrary to the official position of the Council without so 
stating. 

 
G. General Conduct. In general, Council Members shall conduct themselves so as to 

bring credit upon the government of the city by respecting the rule of law, ensuring 
non-discriminatory delivery of public services, keeping informed concerning the 
matters coming before the Council and abiding by all decisions of the Council, 
whether or not the member voted on the prevailing side. 

 
H. Participation in Council Meetings. Any Council Member desiring to be heard during a 

Council meeting should normally be recognized by the presiding officer and shall 
confine his or her remarks to the subject under consideration or to be considered.  
Council Members will speak one at a time, allowing one another to finish. The 
presiding officer may allow flexibility in the application of this rule. 

 
Conferences and Seminars  
  
Council Members are urged to educate themselves about local government. To that 
end, and as funding allows, Council Members are urged to attend the League of Oregon 
Cities functions at city expense. Requests to attend other government-related 
conferences, training, seminars, and meetings will be presented to the Council for 
approval. Council Members who serve on committees or the boards of the League of 
Oregon Cities, the National League of Cities, or other similar associations of local 
governments will be reimbursed for reasonable expenses not covered by the respective 
body.  
 
Confidentiality  
  
Council Members will keep all written materials provided to them on matters of 
confidentiality under law in complete confidence to ensure that the city’s position is not 
compromised. No mention of confidential information read or heard should be made to 
anyone other than other Council Members, the City Manager, the City Attorney, or 
responsible department heads. 
  
A. If the Council in executive session provides direction or consensus to staff on 

proposed terms and conditions for any type of negotiation whether it be related to 
property acquisition or disposal, pending or likely claim or litigation, or employee 
negotiations, all contact with other parties shall be made by designated staff or 
representatives handling the negotiations or litigation. A Council Member will not 
have any contact or discussion with any other party or its representative nor 
communicate any executive session discussion, except as authorized by Council. 

 
B. All public statements, information, or press releases relating to a confidential matter 

will be handled by the City Manager or other person authorized by the Council. 
 
C. The Council, by resolution or motion, may censure a member who discloses a 

confidential matter. 

 15



 
 
 
 
Contacts with Organizations 
   
The City Council will seek meetings with the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, 
the Lincoln County School District Board, the Port of Newport, and other local 
governments, and groups, as needed to address issues of common interest. The City 
Council will allow local groups such as the Chamber of Commerce, and local business, 
neighborhood or citizens groups, to make presentations to the Council on matters of 
common interest. 
 
Expenses, Reimbursement and Compensation  
  
Council Members shall receive no pay or other compensation for serving on the Council. 
Council Members will follow the same rules and procedures for reimbursement as those 
which apply to city employees, when seeking reimbursement for attendance at 
authorized conferences or other authorized reimbursement. The city does not reimburse 
Council Members for expenses incurred by their spouses and/or guests. 
 
Gifts by the Council  
  
On occasion, and within the approved budget, the Council may wish to purchase a gift 
or memento for someone with city funds. Expenditures of this type shall require 
consensus approval of the Council. 
 
Legal Advice 
   
Requests to the City Attorney for advice requiring extensive legal research shall not be 
made by an individual Council Member except with the concurrence of the majority of 
the Council. 
 
Liaison to Boards, Commissions and Committees  
 
The Mayor may appoint Council Members to act as liaison to boards, commissions, 
committees, or other bodies that advise the Council. In the event a Council liaison is 
unable to attend a meeting of the board, commission, or committee, the liaison will 
either contact another Council member to act as liaison for the meeting or ask the Mayor 
to find a substitute.   
 
When attending a meeting of a city board, commission, committee, or task force as 
liaison, Council Members will: 
 
A. Not attempt to lobby or influence the board, commission, committee, or task force on 

any item under its consideration. It is important for the advisory body to make 
objective recommendations to the Council on items before them. However, nothing 

 16



in this section precludes the Council Member from asking questions, making 
comments, explaining what the Council expects from the board, commission, 
committee, or task force or explaining Council policy.   

 
B. Not vote at the body’s meeting on any item.  This rule applies only when the Council 

Member is acting as liaison; it does not apply when the Council Member is a member 
of the board, commission, committee, or task force and does not apply to non-city 
bodies when the Council Member is the representative of the city. 

 
Litigation  
  
The Council will meet in executive session with the City Manager and City Attorney 
within 30 days of the city’s receipt of: 
 
A. A statutory notice of intent to sue, or 
 
B. A summons and complaint for damages. 
 
This requirement does not apply to cases in which the claim is covered by insurance. 
 
The City Manager and City Attorney will provide the Council with a report of all claims 
filed against the city. 
 
Public Records 
   
The disposition of public records created or received by individual Council Members 
shall be in accordance with Oregon Public Records Law. Written information incidental 
to the official duties of a member of the City Council, including electronic mail 
messages, notes, memos, and calendars (e.g., “Daytimers”) are public records and are 
subject to disclosure under the public records law. 
 
Representing the City   
 
When a member of the City Council represents the city before another governmental 
agency, before a community organization or media, the official should first indicate the 
majority position of the Council if there is one. Personal opinions and comments may be 
expressed only if the Council Member clarifies that those statements do not represent 
the position of the Council. 
 
A. The effectiveness of city lobbying in Salem or in Washington, D.C., depends on the 

clarity of the city’s voice. When Council Members represent the city in a “lobbying” 
situation, it is appropriate that the Council Members avoid expressions of personal 
dissent from an adopted Council policy. 

 
B. When Council Members attend meetings of organizations such as the League of 

Oregon Cities or the National League of Cities and their boards and committees, 
they do so as individual elected officials and are free to express their individual 

 17



 18

views. If the City Council has an adopted policy relating to an issue under 
discussion, the Councl Member is expected to report that fact. 

 
C. By resolution, the Council may appoint one or two of its members to act as 

negotiators with groups, individuals, or other governmental entities. Any agreements 
made by such negotiators shall require approval of the Council as a whole to take 
effect. 

 
Vacancies on Boards, Commissions and Committees   
 
The Mayor, subject to ratification by the Council, shall appoint all members of boards, 
commissions, committees, and task forces, and appoint persons to fill all vacancies. The 
City Manager will seek applications from interested candidates. The Council may, and 
normally will, interview applicants for the Planning Commission and Budget Committee.   
 
Vacancies on the Council  
  
Upon declaring a vacancy on the City Council, the Council will fill the vacancy under 
provisions of the City Charter. The vacancy will be advertised and applications will be 
accepted. After the filing deadline has passed, the Council will conduct public interviews 
of all applicants. The Council will make a decision to fill the vacancy in a public meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

CITY REPORT   JANUARY 2011

2 PERMITS ISSUED:

AUTOMATIC ALARMS: 11 1 BURN PERMITS: 31 41

MEDICAL CALLS: 43 8 FIREWORKS PERMIT: 0 0

MOTOR VEHICLE COLLISION 11 6 FIREWORKS DISPLAY: 0 0

HAZMAT STANDBY: 1 0

MUTUAL AID RENDERED: 2 0
TOTAL INSPECTIONS: 14

MUTUAL AID RECEIVED: 0 0
VIOLATIONS: 3

AVIATION STANDBY:
ABATEMENTS: 12

PLAN REVIEWS: 6

OVERPRESSURE/RUPTURE: 0 0

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS: 2

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

OCCUPANCIES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

AIRCRAFT: 0 0 PROCESSING PLANTS: 0 0

BOATS: 0 0 PUBLIC BUILDINGS: 2 0

HOSPITAL/CARE CENTER: 0 0 REPAIR SHOPS: 1 0

HOTEL/MOTEL: 4 0 RESIDENTIAL: 6 1

LABORATORIES: 0 0 RESTAURANT: 1 0

LAUNDRAMATS: 0 0

LAUNDRIES: 0 0

SCHOOLS: 0 0

SERVICE STATION: 0 0

MANUFACTURING: 0 0

MARINA: 0 0

STORAGE: 3 0

STORES: 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS: 0 0

MOTOR VEHICLES: 1 0

TAVERNS: 0 0

TRAILERS: 0 0

NATURAL COVER: 0 0

OFFICES: 0 0

UTILITIES: 0 0

VACANT BUILDINGS: 0 0

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

PUBLIC SERVICE 29 1

12 0HAZARDOUS CONDITION

VOLUNTEER HOURS 210

FIRE CALLS: 5

PERSON INSERVICES TOURS: 0



NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

CITY REPORT   JANUARY 2011

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

ALARM MALFUNCTION: 7 0 HEATING APPLICANCE: 0 0

INCENDIARY: 1 0CARELESS SMOKING: 0 0

CHILDREN W/HEAT SOUR 0 0 MISCELLANEOUS: 0 0

MISTAKEN ALARM: 2 0CLEARANCE: 0 0

ELECTRICAL: 0 1
OPEN FIRES: 1 0

ENGINE BACKFIRE: 0 0

EXPOSURE FIRE: 0 0

FALSE ALARM: 4 0

REKINDLE: 0 0

SCORCHED FOOD: 0 0

FIREWORKS: 0 0

FLAMMABLE LIQUID: 0 0

SPARKS: 0 0

FLUES: 0 1

FRICTION: 0 0

UNDETERMINED: 1 0

GAS LEAK: 1 0

WELDING/CUTTING: 0 0

LOSS OF LIFE INJURY

CIVILIAN: 1 FIREFIGHTER: 0 CIVILIAN: 0 FIREFIGHTER: 0

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms



NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

 YEAR END CITY REPORT 2010  

14 PERMITS ISSUED:

AUTOMATIC ALARMS: 81 12 BURN PERMITS: 325 798

MEDICAL CALLS: 458 86 FIREWORKS PERMIT: 1 0

MOTOR VEHICLE COLLISION 43 22 FIREWORKS DISPLAY: 1 0

HAZMAT STANDBY: 1 0

MUTUAL AID RENDERED: 64 4
TOTAL INSPECTIONS: 303

MUTUAL AID RECEIVED: 0 0
VIOLATIONS: 200

AVIATION STANDBY:
ABATEMENTS: 141

PLAN REVIEWS: 103

OVERPRESSURE/RUPTURE: 1 0

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS: 16

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

OCCUPANCIES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

AIRCRAFT: 0 0 PROCESSING PLANTS: 1 0

BOATS: 5 0 PUBLIC BUILDINGS: 20 0

HOSPITAL/CARE CENTER: 15 2 REPAIR SHOPS: 0 1

HOTEL/MOTEL: 15 0 RESIDENTIAL: 61 20

LABORATORIES: 1 0 RESTAURANT: 3 0

LAUNDRAMATS: 0 0

LAUNDRIES: 0 0

SCHOOLS: 9 0

SERVICE STATION: 0 0

MANUFACTURING: 1 0

MARINA: 2 0

STORAGE: 0 0

STORES: 7 0

MISCELLANEOUS: 6 0

MOTOR VEHICLES: 7 1

TAVERNS: 0 0

TRAILERS: 1 0

NATURAL COVER: 12 5

OFFICES: 5 0

UTILITIES: 2 0

VACANT BUILDINGS: 0 0

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

PUBLIC SERVICE 79 7

23 1HAZARDOUS CONDITION

VOLUNTEER HOURS 3027

FIRE CALLS: 90

PERSON INSERVICES TOURS: 1039



NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

 YEAR END CITY REPORT 2010  

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

ALARM MALFUNCTION: 17 1 HEATING APPLICANCE: 6 0

INCENDIARY: 4 0CARELESS SMOKING: 0 0

CHILDREN W/HEAT SOUR 0 0 MISCELLANEOUS: 4 1

MISTAKEN ALARM: 38 3CLEARANCE: 7 0

ELECTRICAL: 18 2
OPEN FIRES: 18 10

ENGINE BACKFIRE: 0 0

EXPOSURE FIRE: 0 0

FALSE ALARM: 8 1

REKINDLE: 0 0

SCORCHED FOOD: 21 3

FIREWORKS: 4 0

FLAMMABLE LIQUID: 1 0

SPARKS: 0 0

FLUES: 3 0

FRICTION: 0 0

UNDETERMINED: 23 5

GAS LEAK: 0 0

WELDING/CUTTING: 3 0

LOSS OF LIFE INJURY

CIVILIAN: 0 FIREFIGHTER: 0 CIVILIAN: 0 FIREFIGHTER: 1

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms



4 9 6 4 4 6 HOURS 439

Newport Police Department
Monthly Statistical Review

JANUARY 2011 Total CFS To Date

SELECTED CALLS THIS LAST ISAME T ME This Last
FOR SERVICE  (CFS) MONTH MONTH LAST YEAR ARRESTS Year Year
RAPE 1 0 1 0 1 1
ROBBERY 1 0 0 0 1 0
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 0 0 0 0 0 0
BURGLARY (Residential) 3 1 3 2 3 3
BURGLARY (Business) 1 0 1 1 1 1
BURGLARY (Other) 1 0 1 0 1 1    January Overtime Hours
THEFT 21 25 24 3 21 24 Shift Coverage 158
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 2 5 3 1 2 3 Court 18
FRAUD 8 8 8 1 8 8 Investigations 134
SIMPLE ASSAULT 10 9 9 8 10 9 Administration 21
VANDALISM 8 6 13 2 8 13 Training 37
SEX OFFENSE 0 1 0 0 0 0 Other 72
NARCOTIC/DRUGSNARCOTIC/DRUGS 4 9 6 4 4 6 TOTOTALTAL HOURS 439 
DOMESTIC DISPUTES 17 15 14 x 17 14
LIQUOR LAWS 2 0 3 2 2 3 Top 5 Traffic Citation Charges
DUII 10 7 5 10 10 5 Speeding 29
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 19 6 13 13 19 13 Prk 15ng in Sp for Disable
TRESPASS/PROWLER 8 5 12 2 8 12 Driving Susp/Revoked 10
TRAFFIC CRASH/INJURY/FATAL 5 4 4 x 5 4 Fail to Obey Trf Dev 9
TRAFFIC CRASH/PROPERTY 8 4 13 x 8 13 No Operator License 8
HIT & RUN 9 11 8 1 9 8 TOTAL CITATIONS 97
ANIMAL PROBLEMS 9 10 17 x 9 17
SUSPICIOUS PERS/CIRCUM 93 81 61 0 93 61 PARKING CITATIONS 145
VEHICLE IMPOUNDS 11 21 13 x 11 13
ALARMS 50 44 49 x 50 49 WARNING CITATIONS 137

88
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 642 575 630 642 630 Volunteer Hours 134



























APPOINTMENT OF BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBER 
(Interviewed at Noon Work Session) 
 
 
APPLICANTS: 

JOAN STANTON 
BILL BAIN 
PATRICIA PATRICK-JOLING 
LLOYD “OLY” OLSON 
FRED SPRINGSTEEN 
JIMMY RODRIGUEZ 

 





 
   

Jim Voetberg 
City Manager 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 
Newport, OR  97365 

j.voetberg@thecityofnewport.net 
 
 

Manager’s Report 
Meeting of February 22, 2011 

 
 
Following is the Manager’s Report for the City Council meeting of February 22, 2011: 
 
Month Ending Financial Report, January 31, 2010.  Attached for Council review are fiscal year-
to-date expenditure reports through the end of January 2010 for key funds of the City.   
 
Suggestion/Concern/Complaint update: Attached for Council review is the 
Suggestion/Concern/Complaint update through the end of January 2011.  The update covers 
citizen comments to staff, citizen comments brought to staff’s attention by Councilors, and 
citizen comments voiced at Council meetings.  Closed items over 30 days old have been 
dropped off the list. 
 
Project Update on Key City Projects:  Attached is an update by Public Works on key City 
projects including the Water Treatment Plant, Naterlin Drive Sidewalk Improvements and the 
Marine Science Drive project. 
 
Funding to Address Storm Water System Needs:  This past wet winter has identified 
deficiencies in our storm water system that can only be addressed through system capital 
improvements.  Given that funding for storm water capital improvements is essentially limited 
to General Fund monies, the ability to make these improvements is made difficult with 
competing General Fund needs.   
 
As the Council may be aware, the City has adopted a Storm Water fee methodology but has 
chosen not to implement any fee.  The methodology is based on impervious area identified on 
a property which, though last year’s budgetary process, proved to be unpopular with many 
businesses.  In preparation of next year’s budget, staff is seeking direction from the Council if 
there is a desire to revisit the storm water fee issue in order to address storm water capital 
improvement needs.  If there is consensus to discuss the possibility of implementing a storm 
water fee, it is suggested that; (1) a public hearing be held to hear public input prior to formal 
discussion by the Council and, (2) different storm water fee methodologies, such as a flat fee, 
be considered.  Staff will be requesting Council direction on this issue.    

mailto:j.voetberg@thecityofnewport.net


 

City of Newport 
 
 
 
 

Financial Report as of 
31 JANUARY 2011 

 
For Certain Funds,  

Council Meeting: 22  February  2011 

Departments, and Cost Centers 



































 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager City Council 

From: Timothy Gross, Senior Project Manager 

Date: February 15, 2011 

Re: Capital Projects Status Update 

 
SW Naterlin Drive Sidewalk and Bicycle Improvements 
The City has completed review of the 90% design plans and has sent them back to David Evans and 
Associates (DEA) for revisions. A draft of the US Coast Guard easement has been received and is being 
reviewed by the City Attorney.  City staff have met with the Bike and Pedestrian Committee, the Coast Guard, 
and the Bayfront Association to discuss the project. The project is planned to be advertised beginning  February 
23, 2011. 

 
Nye Beach Local Flooding/Nye Creek Watershed Assessment 
City staff and DEA are preparing a presentation for a future council workshop on storm water issues and the 
flooding in Nye Beach. 
 
South Beach Transportation Improvement Project 
The Contractor is proceeding with construction which includes installing utility conduits and vaults, installing the 
irrigation system, and preparing the bike trail sub-grade.  
 
Hwy 101 Sanitary Sewer Repairs Between NE 12th & 13th Streets 
The City has signed a contract with W.W Construction of Newport, OR to do the repairs to the sewer. The repair 
will be started Monday, February 28th, following the Seafood and Wine Festival. The southbound lanes of Hwy 
101 will be closed in this area for approximately 1 week during the construction. 
 
Water Filtration Facility 
The water treatment plant is progressing on schedule and within the allocated costs. The attachments have 
been provided by the Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC). The schedule of activities for the 
next three months is attached. Also attached is a Construction Cost Tracking spread sheet that shows individual 
construction items.  
 
Deco Park 
City staff have met with the City Center Association and consensus was reached to solicit proposals to construct 
only the pylon at this time due to budget constraints. The remainder of the park would be constructed under 
separate contract when additional funds become available. Please see separate staff report from Parks and 
Recreation on this project. 
 
Coast Park 
Final plans have been received for the Coast Park Project. City staff are completing the bidding documents. The 
advertisement date has been moved back to February 23, 2011, 
 
 







Costs through:    1/31/11
Report Date: 1/31/11

A B  C D E F G = D + E + F H I J K L = J + K M = L ‐ G

Item Description UM  Project Budget 
 Budget 

Adjustments 
 Change Orders   Current Budget 

 Encumbrances to 
date* 

 Encumbrances to 
complete 

 Costs To‐Date  
 Costs To 
Complete 

 Forecast Cost at 
Completion 

 Variance 

001‐008 Preconstruction Services 98,260.00 0.00 0.00 98,260.00 98,260.00 0.00 98,260.00 0.00 98,260.00 0.00
1000 Early Work Amendment #1 Allowance All 225,335.74 0.00 0.00 225,335.74 221,995.87 0.00 221,995.87 0.00 221,995.87 (3,339.87)
100 General Conditions MOS 90,000.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.00
101 GMP #1 Mobilization LS 130,000.00 0.00 0.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 0.00 130,000.00 0.00 130,000.00 0.00
102 Advertising LS 21,730.00 0.00 0.00 21,730.00 21,730.00 0.00 21,730.00 0.00 21,730.00 0.00
103 Reproduction Costs ALL 12,500.00 0.00 0.00 12,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (12,500.00)
104 General Housekeeping MOS 10,086.00 0.00 0.00 10,086.00 10,086.00 0.00 10,086.00 0.00 10,086.00 0.00
105 Material Hoisting/Distribution MOS 27,536.34 0.00 0.00 27,536.34 27,536.34 0.00 27,536.34 0.00 27,536.34 0.00
106 Temp Fencing/Barricades/Signs LS 11,560.00 0.00 0.00 11,560.00 11,560.00 0.00 11,560.00 0.00 11,560.00 0.00
107 Temp Lay Down Area / Roads LS 19,921.00 0.00 0.00 19,921.00 19,921.00 0.00 19,921.00 0.00 19,921.00 0.00
108 Waste Management MOS 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
150 Surveying ALL 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 3,000.00 (2,000.00)

2000 Soldier Pile Retaining Wall LS 299,500.00 0.00 0.00 299,500.00 299,500.00 0.00 299,500.00 0.00 299,500.00 0.00
2001 Concrete Fascia LS 176,500.00 0.00 0.00 176,500.00 176,500.00 0.00 176,500.00 0.00 176,500.00 0.00
2002 Excavation LS 62,100.00 0.00 0.00 62,100.00 62,100.00 0.00 62,100.00 0.00 62,100.00 0.00
2003 Concrete Drainage Swale LS 21,000.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 0.00
2004 6 Ft Vinyl Coated Chain Link Fence LS 8,900.00 0.00 0.00 8,900.00 8,900.00 0.00 0.00 8,900.00 8,900.00 0.00
2010 Force Main Sewer Line & HDPE Conduit LS 79,710.21 0.00 0.00 79,710.21 83,751.93 0.00 83,751.93 0.00 83,751.93 4,041.72
2020 Relocate Existing Piping at Clearwell ALL 59,107.00 0.00 0.00 59,107.00 87,811.93 0.00 87,811.93 0.00 87,811.93 28,704.93
2030 Rammed Aggregate Piers ALL 400,000.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 287,925.70 0.00 287,925.70 0.00 287,925.70 (112,074.30)
2072 Garage Demo ALL 28,598.78 0.00 0.00 28,598.78 10,800.00 0.00 10,800.00 0.00 10,800.00 (17,798.78)

01100 GMP #2 General Conditions MOS 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 60,000.00 240,000.00 60,000.00 240,000.00 300,000.00 0.00
01105 GMP #2 Reproduction Costs ALL 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 (2,500.00)
01110 GMP #2 General Housekeeping MOS 40,244.00 0.00 0.00 40,244.00 8,048.80 32,195.20 8,048.80 32,195.20 40,244.00 0.00
01115 GMP #2 Material Hoisting/Distribution MOS 110,045.00 0.00 0.00 110,045.00 22,009.00 88,036.00 22,009.00 88,036.00 110,045.00 0.00
01120 GMP #2 Temp Fence Maintenance/Signs LS 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
01125 Remove adn Restoration of laydown areas LS 7,570.00 0.00 0.00 7,570.00 0.00 7,570.00 0.00 7,570.00 7,570.00 0.00
01130 Temporary Weather Protection ALL 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00
01135 GMP #2 Waste Management MOS 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 2,400.00 9,600.00 2,400.00 9,600.00 12,000.00 0.00
01150 GMP #2 Surveying ALL 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00
02221 Membrane Bldg Encasements LS 84,355.00 0.00 0.00 84,355.00 84,355.00 0.00 75,919.50 8,435.50 84,355.00 0.00
02222 Site Piping Material LS 245,583.00 0.00 0.00 245,583.00 245,583.00 0.00 66,800.00 178,783.00 245,583.00 0.00
02223 Site Piping Placement LS 360,389.27 0.00 0.00 360,389.27 360,389.27 0.00 0.00 360,389.27 360,389.27 0.00
02224 Structural Fill Placement & Grading LS 81,038.00 0.00 0.00 81,038.00 81,038.00 0.00 40,519.00 40,519.00 81,038.00 0.00
02250 Earthwork Allowance ALL 23,596.00 0.00 0.00 23,596.00 0.00 23,596.00 0.00 23,596.00 23,596.00 0.00
02272 Gravel Surfacing Allowance ALL 24,750.00 0.00 0.00 24,750.00 0.00 24,750.00 0.00 24,750.00 24,750.00 0.00
02444 Chain Link Fence LS 16,259.00 0.00 0.00 16,259.00 16,259.00 0.00 0.00 16,259.00 16,259.00 0.00
02950 Landscaping Allowance ALL 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
03100 Form Materials LS 44,971.00 0.00 0.00 44,971.00 44,971.00 0.00 22,485.50 22,485.50 44,971.00 0.00
03200 Concrete Reinforcement LS 133,866.00 0.00 0.00 133,866.00 133,866.00 0.00 66,933.00 66,933.00 133,866.00 0.00
03300 Concrete & Concrete Pumping LS 160,038.00 0.00 0.00 160,038.00 160,038.00 0.00 51,212.16 108,825.84 160,038.00 0.00
03310 Sidewalks LS 52,378.00 0.00 0.00 52,378.00 52,378.00 0.00 0.00 52,378.00 52,378.00 0.00
03320 Membrane Bldg Concrete Placement LS 138,912.00 0.00 0.00 138,912.00 138,912.00 0.00 48,619.20 90,292.80 138,912.00 0.00

Newport Water Treatment Plant 
Construction Cost Tracking 

<‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐COSTS‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐><‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐BUDGET‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐> <‐‐‐ENCUMBRANCES‐‐‐>



03330 Clearwell Concrete Placement LS 30,389.00 0.00 0.00 30,389.00 30,389.00 0.00 0.00 30,389.00 30,389.00 0.00
03350 GAC/Flocc Concrete Placement LS 26,325.00 0.00 0.00 26,325.00 26,325.00 0.00 0.00 26,325.00 26,325.00 0.00
04200 Masonry LS 349,677.00 0.00 0.00 349,677.00 313,787.00 35,890.00 0.00 349,677.00 349,677.00 0.00
05211 Steel Joists & Decking LS 182,790.00 0.00 0.00 182,790.00 182,790.00 0.00 0.00 182,790.00 182,790.00 0.00
05500 Fabricated Metals LS 167,393.00 0.00 0.00 167,393.00 128,618.00 38,775.00 0.00 167,393.00 167,393.00 0.00
07210 Building Insulation ALL 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00
07412 Metal Roofing LS 147,662.00 0.00 0.00 147,662.00 147,662.00 0.00 0.00 147,662.00 147,662.00 0.00
08110 Metal Doors & Frames LS 37,388.00 0.00 0.00 37,388.00 28,604.00 8,784.00 0.00 37,388.00 37,388.00 0.00
08220 FRP Doors & Frames LS 28,066.00 0.00 0.00 28,066.00 23,032.00 5,034.00 0.00 28,066.00 28,066.00 0.00
08332 Overhead Doors LS 16,675.00 0.00 0.00 16,675.00 16,675.00 0.00 0.00 16,675.00 16,675.00 0.00
08410 Storefront Windows & Glazing LS 7,950.00 0.00 0.00 7,950.00 7,950.00 0.00 0.00 7,950.00 7,950.00 0.00
08700 Finish Hardware LS 22,326.00 0.00 0.00 22,326.00 22,326.00 0.00 0.00 22,326.00 22,326.00 0.00
09110 Interior Framing LS 15,677.00 0.00 0.00 15,677.00 15,677.00 0.00 0.00 15,677.00 15,677.00 0.00
09130 Acoustical Ceiling LS 11,544.00 0.00 0.00 11,544.00 11,544.00 0.00 0.00 11,544.00 11,544.00 0.00
09250 Drywall LS 31,353.00 0.00 0.00 31,353.00 31,353.00 0.00 0.00 31,353.00 31,353.00 0.00
09310 Ceramic Tile LS 5,693.00 0.00 0.00 5,693.00 5,693.00 0.00 0.00 5,693.00 5,693.00 0.00
09660 Resilent Flooring & Base LS 3,209.00 0.00 0.00 3,209.00 3,209.00 0.00 0.00 3,209.00 3,209.00 0.00
09905 Painting & Protective Coatings LS 105,700.00 0.00 0.00 105,700.00 105,700.00 0.00 0.00 105,700.00 105,700.00 0.00
10400 Miscellaneous Specialties LS 12,174.00 0.00 0.00 12,174.00 0.00 12,174.00 0.00 12,174.00 12,174.00 0.00
11000 Equipment Hoisting & Accessories LS 28,000.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 0.00
11062 Chemical Submersible & Sampling Pumps LS 5,200.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00 5,200.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00 5,200.00 0.00
11063 Floating Submersible Pump Station LS 15,800.00 0.00 0.00 15,800.00 15,800.00 0.00 0.00 15,800.00 15,800.00 0.00
11072 Vertical Turbine Line Pumps LS 108,000.00 0.00 0.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00 0.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00
11075 Vertical Turbine Can Pumps LS 146,300.00 0.00 0.00 146,300.00 146,300.00 0.00 0.00 146,300.00 146,300.00 0.00
11076 Submersible Non‐Clog pumps LS 11,500.00 0.00 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00
11082 Peristaltic Pumps LS 69,900.00 0.00 0.00 69,900.00 67,400.00 2,500.00 0.00 69,900.00 69,900.00 0.00
11182 Chemical Storage Tanks LS 59,200.00 0.00 0.00 59,200.00 59,200.00 0.00 0.00 59,200.00 59,200.00 0.00
11358 GAC System LS 326,934.00 0.00 0.00 326,934.00 326,934.00 0.00 0.00 326,934.00 326,934.00 0.00
11359 Flocculation System LS 109,500.00 0.00 0.00 109,500.00 109,500.00 0.00 0.00 109,500.00 109,500.00 0.00
11500 Storage Totes LS 11,600.00 0.00 0.00 11,600.00 11,600.00 0.00 0.00 11,600.00 11,600.00 0.00
11601 Laboratory Accessories LS 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 500.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 0.00
12356 Laboratory Casework & Fumehood LS 36,323.00 0.00 0.00 36,323.00 36,323.00 0.00 0.00 36,323.00 36,323.00 0.00
12500 Furnishings LS 2,731.00 0.00 0.00 2,731.00 855.00 0.00 0.00 855.00 855.00 (1,876.00)
13122 Prefabricated Wood Building ALL 40,855.00 0.00 0.00 40,855.00 0.00 40,855.00 0.00 40,855.00 40,855.00 0.00
13216 Glass Fused Steel Reservoir LS 279,700.00 0.00 0.00 279,700.00 279,700.00 0.00 0.00 279,700.00 279,700.00 0.00
13400 Install Pall Equipment LS 79,400.00 0.00 0.00 79,400.00 79,400.00 0.00 0.00 79,400.00 79,400.00 0.00
13440 Instrumentation & Controls LS 197,506.00 0.00 0.00 197,506.00 197,506.00 0.00 0.00 197,506.00 197,506.00 0.00
14240 Hydraulic Elevator LS 43,750.00 0.00 0.00 43,750.00 43,750.00 0.00 0.00 43,750.00 43,750.00 0.00
15060 Process Mechanical Installation LS 245,420.00 0.00 0.00 245,420.00 245,420.00 0.00 0.00 245,420.00 245,420.00 0.00
15061 Process Mechanical Materials LS 417,815.00 0.00 0.00 417,815.00 417,815.00 0.00 0.00 417,815.00 417,815.00 0.00
15065 Mechanical Supports LS 71,554.00 0.00 0.00 71,554.00 71,554.00 0.00 0.00 71,554.00 71,554.00 0.00
15100 Valves LS 92,620.00 0.00 0.00 92,620.00 92,620.00 (2,399.00) 0.00 90,221.00 90,221.00 (2,399.00)
15300 Fire Protection LS 37,102.00 0.00 0.00 37,102.00 37,102.00 0.00 0.00 37,102.00 37,102.00 0.00
15440 Plumbing LS 129,550.00 0.00 0.00 129,550.00 129,550.00 0.00 16,193.75 113,356.25 129,550.00 0.00
15605 HVAC LS 439,500.00 0.00 0.00 439,500.00 439,500.00 0.00 0.00 439,500.00 439,500.00 0.00
16000 Electrical LS 1,433,094.00 0.00 0.00 1,433,094.00 1,433,094.00 0.00 71,732.00 1,361,362.00 1,433,094.00 0.00
17100 Intake Mechanical ALL 297,612.00 0.00 0.00 297,612.00 0.00 297,612.00 0.00 297,612.00 297,612.00 0.00
17200 Electrical Creek Crossing ALL 128,289.00 0.00 0.00 128,289.00 0.00 128,289.00 0.00 128,289.00 128,289.00 0.00
17300 Raw Water Line Replacement ALL 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 0.00
18000 Owners Contingency LS 260,252.00 0.00 0.00 260,252.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (260,252.00)
20000 GMP #1 Fee LS 102,672.45 0.00 0.00 102,672.45 94,987.03 728.00 94,987.03 728.00 95,715.03 (6,957.42)
20002 GMP #2 Fee LS 633,100.00 633,100.00 38,701.05 594,398.95 38,701.05 594,398.95 633,100.00 0.00

Totals 10,940,609.79 0.00 0.00 10,940,609.79 8,714,770.92 1,836,888.15 2,330,538.76 8,221,120.31 10,551,659.07 (388,950.72)
  * Encumberences include executed subcontract agreements, work bid by SCG and completed work billed to date.



















 

ORDINANCE NO. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT, AMENDING CHAPTER 11.05, BUILDING CODES  
AND AMENDING CHAPTER 7.05 SOLID WASTE 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 11.05, Building Codes, is hereby amended to add a new section, Section 
11.05.135, as follows: 

11.05.135 Demolition Permit 

A.  Demolition  

A.  Permit Required.  Before any person who is not an owner of a structure or part of a structure 
may demolish any structure or part of a structure, the person will obtain a permit from the 
Community Development Department.   

B.  If the demolition will generate a total of three cubic yards or less of solid waste and the person 
intends to remove,  transport and dispose of the solid waste as allowed under Chapter 7.05.015 (B) 
(4), the person will provide an estimate of the amount of solid waste that will be generated by the 
demolition and the name and location of the site to which the solid waste will be taken for disposal.  
The disposal site must be approved by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality or other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction.  The person removing, transporting and disposing of the 
solid waste under this sub‐section will maintain for a period of one year all records and receipts 
relating to and from the location of the site to which the solid waste was taken for disposal. 

C.  An application for a demolition permit will include measures to safeguard the public during 
construction as set forth in the Oregon Structural Specialty Code.  The Community Development 
Department may charge a fee for a demolition permit. 

D. Removal, transport, and disposal of solid waste, including demolition material, is subject to 
regulation under Chapter 7.05.  

Section 12.  Chapter 7.05, Solid Waste, is hereby amended to add a new sub‐section (4) (5) and 
(6)to Section B, as follows: 

7.05.015   Exclusive Franchise and Exceptions  

A.  The Council finds that the best way of achieving the purpose, policies 
and  priorities  of  this  chapter  is  to  grant  an  exclusive  franchise  for  service.  The 
franchisee shall be required to enter into a franchise agreement with the city. Grants 
of  franchises  and  approval  of  franchise  agreements  shall  be  by  non‐codified 
ordinances.  The  franchisee  shall  provide  service  throughout  the  city,  and  shall 



 

provide at least one depot for depot‐recyclable materials and two additional depots 
for container glass only.  

  1.  Unless as otherwise provided by this chapter, no   person 
shall provide service without a franchise issued   by the city.  

  2.  Unless as otherwise provided by this chapter, no   person 
without a franchise issued by the city shall   take,  process, 
sort, transfer, compact or remove,  whether  for  recycling,  reuse, 
or otherwise, waste or   solid  waste  materials  placed  out  for 
collection. 

  3.  Unless as otherwise provided by this chapter, no   person 
without a franchise issued by the city, other   than  the 
person producing the materials contained   therein,  shall 
enter or interfere with any solid waste   container,  or  remove 
any such container or its   contents  from  the  location where  the 
same has been   placed by  the person producing  the  contents 
of such   container  without  first  obtaining  written  consent 
from   the franchisee. 

 

  4.  Any  person  with  a  franchise  issued  by  the  city,  shall  in 
  addition to all other legal rights and remedies he or   she 
might otherwise possess, have a cause of action   for  violations 
of this chapter or the franchise in any   court  of  competent 
jurisdiction, including a claim for   injunctive  relief.  Damages 
recovered in such a case   shall be trebled if reasonably necessary 
to deter   continuing  violations of  this  chapter or  the  franchise. 
  The  prevailing  party  in  any  such  action  shall  be 
  entitled  to  recover  his  or  her  reasonable  costs, 
  including attorney’s fees and expert witness fees at   the 
trial court level and on appeal. 

   

B.  Nothing  in  this  chapter  or  a  franchise  issued  pursuant  to  this 
chapter shall: 

  1.  Prohibit  any  property  owner  or  tenant  from  personally 
  transporting solid waste generated by the property   owner 
or tenant to an authorized disposal site or   resource 
recovery facility. Solid waste generated by a   tenant  is 
owned by the tenant, not the landlord or   property owner.  



 

(Chapter 7.05.015(B.)(1.) adopted by Ordinance No. 1945 
on January 7, 2008; effective February 6, 2008) 

  2.  Prohibit any person from contracting with a federal   agency 
to provide service to such agency, provided,   however,  such 
person shall apply for a franchise for   that  service  only  and 
shall comply with all applicable   requirements  imposed  on  the 
franchisee under this   chapter  and  a  franchise  issued 
pursuant to this   chapter with  the  exception of  rates  or  terms 
of service   set by written contract with such agency where they 
  are in conflict. 

 

3.  Prohibit any non‐profit charitable or civic organization having a recognized 
tax‐exempt status, from receiving as a donation, source‐separated recyclable 
materials at a designated location.  

4.  Prohibit a contractor  licensed in the state of Oregon and employed to 
demolish, construct, or remodel a building or structure, including but not limited 
to, land clearing and construction operations, from hauling waste created in 
connection with such employment .  Such waste will be generated only by the 
contractor in connection with the contractor’s construction site and hauled in 
equipment owned by the contractor.   licensed in the state of Oregon from 
transporting and disposing of waste as an incidental part of carrying on the 
business or service of the demolition, construction, or remodeling of a building 
or structure or in connection with land clearing and development.  Such waste 
will be generated only by the contractor in connection with the contractor’s 
construction site and hauled in equipment owned by the contractor.  For 
purposes of this section, “incidental” is defined as a total of three cubic yards or 
less of solid waste for each City permit obtained for  demolition, construction or 
remodeling as contemplated under this Section 4.   

 

 

 























































































Local Contract Rules Red-lined Version 

Was too large to post with agenda, so will be 

Adding as a separate item 





























































 
 
 
 
 

 
  



 

































 
NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

Follows Regular Council Meeting 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING AGENDA 

 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
II. Public Comments 
 This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Agency’s 
 attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda.  Comments will be  
 limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a maximum of 15 minutes for all  
 items.  Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 
III. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar is an area of the meeting agenda where items of a repeating or 
routine nature can be considered under a single action.  Any person who desires to have 
an item on the consent agenda removed and considered separately could make it so by 
merely asking. 
 
A. Approval of minutes from regular URA meeting of January 18, 2011 
 (Hawker) 
 

IV. Discussion Items and Presentations 
 Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential 

future action items 
 
 A. Power Point Presentation on Urban Renewal 101 
  (Tokos/Ritzman) 
 
V. Adjournment 
 
 



January 18, 2011 
8:32 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Newport met on the above date in the 
Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, McConnell, Bertuleit, 
Brusselback, Allen, Beemer, Roumagoux, and Sawyer were present. 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, City Attorney 
McCarthy, Community Development Director Tokos, Finance Director Marshall, Public 
Works Director Ritzman, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

ELECT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY CHAIR 
 
 MOTION was made by Brusselback, seconded by Sawyer, to elect Bertuleit as Chair 
of the Newport Urban Renewal Agency. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
MOTION was made by Roumagoux, seconded by Sawyer, to elect Beemer as Vice 
Chair. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of minutes from the regular meeting of December 6, 2010; 
 
 B. Report of accounts paid for November and December 2010. 
 
 MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to approve the 
consent calendar as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

 Update and Discussion on the Marine Science Drive project. Ritzman reported that 
the contractor started last week, and is constructing trenches for conduits for electrical 
systems by the pathway. He noted that the contractor is working with the Chamber of 
Commerce in an effort to not interfere with the Seafood and Wine Festival. He reported 
that a contract had been worked out with the PUD for the undergrounding of utilities. 
McConnell reported that he had attended the last stakeholder meeting, and expects 
more involvement later. He complimented the newsletter that Melissa Roman is 
sending. A discussion ensued regarding curbing on the outside of the shoulders. Tokos 
will review the curbing issue and report back to the URA. Sawyer asked whether there is 
room for semis and delivery trucks to use the roundabout, and Ritzman noted that 
turning templates were used for various sizes of trucks. Bertuleit reported that Rotary 
may be interested in a project in the interior of the roundabout. 
 Ritzman reported that there was a wetland mitigation project on Ash Street in the 
past, and that the area has now been declared a wetland again. He noted that mitigation 



is not required, but an application process is required, and the additional cost will be 
approximately $50,000. 
 Ritzman reported that he is meeting with the consultants regarding a water and 
sewer project on the east side of 101 in South Beach. He discussed bike and pedestrian 
and utility easements, and noted that the plan is to build the project this fall. McConnell 
asked Bertuleit whether he owns property in the project area. Bertuleit stated that he 
owns 13 acres, with approximately 1,000 feet of highway frontage, at 101 and 40th 
Street on the west side of the highway. Ritzman reported that the sewer line on the west 
side of the highway has been installed, but that this project will provide a better source 
of water for Bertuleit’s property. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Authorization to proceed with bidding a project to replace the Performing Arts Center 
roof. Voetberg explained that the issue before the Agency is a request for authorization 
to proceed with bidding a roof replacement project for the Performing Arts Center. Allen 
requested a copy of the intergovernmental agreement between the City of Newport and 
the URA relative to this request. It was explained that the proposed roof replacement 
would cost approximately $165,000, and this amount would include a 15% contingency 
for underlayment if necessary. It was noted that the project will require a future 
supplemental budget. A discussion ensued regarding whether this is a URA or city 
project, and McCarthy suggested deferring a decision until the next meeting. It was 
noted that the city manager could do some of the work associated with the project. It 
was the consensus of the Agency to bring this matter to the next meeting. 
  
 Bertuleit asked that staff review with the URA the urban renewal plan and potential 
projects. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:59 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Jeff Bertuleit, Chair 
 


	AGENDA-2-22-11
	Budget Committee Applications
	COUNCIL RULES COVER SHEET
	Council Rules-Revised-02-14-11-marked (2)
	Council Rules rev 02-14-11 clean pm
	Minutes-Noon WS-and-Regular Mtg-2-7-11
	Fire Dept Monthly Stats-Jan 2011
	Fire Dept -- 2010 FPR YEAR END
	Police-Monthly Report - January 2011
	Report of Accts Paid-January 2011
	APPOINTMENT OF BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBER
	Town and Country Fair Asso-Request
	City Manager Report-February 22 2011
	PAADA Presentation
	Presentation-GuyFaust-Small Business Development-OCCC
	Agenda Summary-Amendment-Npt Municipal Code 7-05-Solid Waste
	Agenda Summary-Rocky Creekl Water Supply Development
	Agenda Summary-Revisions to Local Contract Rules-LCRB
	Local Contract Rules Red
	Agenda Summary-Special Event Fee Waiver Request-Loyalty Days
	Agenda Summary-Deco Park Phase I
	Agenda Summary-Appt Advisory Committee-City Center Parking District
	Agenda Summary-Notice to Award-Wayfinding Signs-Phase II
	Urban Renewal Agenda Cover
	Minutes-UR-1-18-11



